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Submission of the report to the executive authority

Minister. MR Baloyi

It is my pleasure to submit the 2010/11 annual report of Department of Public Service and administration for the period 1 April 2010 to 

31 March 2011, in compliance with section 40(1)(d)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act , 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), and in accordance 

with section 18 of the Treasury Regulations.

K, Govender

Acting Director-General
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VISION

An efficient, effective and development-oriented public service

MISSION

Ensuring an empowered fair and inclusive citizenship

Supporting the Ministry in leading public service transformation

Providing professional advice and support to ensure public service excellence and good governance

VALUE STATEMENT

An exemplary, professional, ethical and accountable public service department embodying the principles of Batho Pele and committed 

to service excellence.

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE 

According to the Public Service Act (PSA) of 1994 as amended, the Minister for Public Service and Administration is responsible 

for establishing norms and standards relating to;

(a) The functions of the public service;

(b) The organisational structures and establishment of departments and other organisational and governance arrangements 

in the public service;

(c) The conditions of service and other employment practices for employees; 

(d Labour relations in the public service; 

(e) Health and wellness of employees; 

(f ) Information management in the public service; 

(g) Electronic government (i.e. the use of information and communication technologies in the public service to improve its 

internal functioning and to render services to the public); 

(h) Integrity, ethics, conduct and anti-corruption in the public service and; 

(i) Transformation, reform, innovation and any other matter to improve the effectiveness and efficiency of the public service 

and its service delivery to the public. 

The department is consequently responsible for providing the institutional arrangements and governance frameworks to ensure 

an efficient and effective public service by among other things; ensuring that its people, processes and technologies are aligned 

to support the fundamental requirements of government for good public administration, the continual improvement in the 

cost, quality, access, responsiveness and speed of service delivery to citizens and address the transformation challenges faced 

by a developmental state.
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ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT

Mr. MR Baloyi, 

Minister for the Public Service and Administration

The year 2010 marked the beginning of the fourth term of the ANC-led 

government. It is a year that will go down in the history of our country as a 

year in which we became the centre of attention of the world as we hosted a 

spectacular and successful FIFA World Cup tournament, the first in the African soil. 

The hosting of the 2010 World Cup tournament has demonstrated that working 

together as a seamlessly integrated public service with one goal in mind; we can 

achieve more with great speed.   

In the reporting period the work of the Department of Public Service and 

Administration was guided by government’s resolute commitment to changing 

the lives of its citizens through the provision of better health services, quality 

education, safety and security with a specific emphasis on the creation of decent 

jobs.

The department also responded to President Jacob Zuma’s declaration of 2010 

as the year of action by dedicating our resources towards the improvement of 

service delivery through offering hands on technical support to departments 

and provinces. This support is aimed at assisting the public service to improve its 

compliance to, and the effective and consistent implementation of, public service and administration policies and regulations 

in the areas of human resources and management, labour relations and remuneration, information technology management, 

governance and formulating innovative strategies to tackle corruption. 

This 2010/11 Annual Report also reflects the strides we  made  in implementing the first year  targets of the Delivery 

Agreement for outcome 12 which is guided by a vision of “An efficient, effective and development-oriented public service and 

an empowered, fair and inclusive citizenship”. At the centre of the outcomes approach is doing things differently to address a 

number of gaps and challenges that still exist within the public service. 

The year 2010/11 has witnessed concerted efforts on our part to consolidate the culture of working differently across all the 

three spheres of government through a number of initiatives which included the re-vitalisation of Batho-Pele to make it a 

living campaign. To this end all provinces were allocated one of the eight principles where they will implement targeted 

programmes whose impact will be assessed as part of the Batho Pele Impact Assessment Programme.

As part the ongoing work on the Macro Organisation of the State, the department has conducted consultative workshops on 

the development of generic structures with the departments of Health, Education and Social Development as well as Offices 

of the Premier. To date the Social Development MinMEC has adopted generic structures for approval and implementation. 

Further workshops will be conducted during the 2011/12 financial year. This work will further be strengthened through 

the training of organisational development practitioners and managers on designing, implementing and maintaining 

organisational structures.

Mr. MR Baloyi, 
Minister for the Public Service and Administration
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In an effort to enhance and consolidate the fight against corruption in the public service, the department has established 

the Public Service Special Anti-Corruption Unit (PSACU) to support departments in the fight against corruption through the 

investigation of corruption related cases and the facilitation of disciplinary processes. The unit will also play a pro-active role 

in reducing the incidences and number of corruption related cases through capacity building and advocacy initiatives and 

programmes. The Unit, which is currently located within the DPSA and reporting directly to the Minister, will be established 

as a government component separate from the DPSA. To this end the process of conducting a feasibility study to dertemine 

the unit’s corporate form has begun.

As part of integrating public services and bringing them closer to the people, we have successfully opened the Maponya Mall 

Thusong Service Center, located in Soweto, as a pilot model of an integrated service delivery point for a range of government 

services which include, amongst others, applications for identity documents, social grants and employment opportunities. 

From the moment the Maponya Mall Thusong Service Centre opened its doors, it became clear that government’s objective 

of bringing services to the people would be achieved. The centre has provided us with a blue print which will be used to 

establish similar centres across the country. 

On labour relations and remuneration matters, we have taken firm measures to address all outstanding collective agreements 

between labour and government as the employer. We are confident that this will strengthen work place relations, achieve 

peace in the work place and build a stable work force which will be more focused on positively contributing to government’s 

mammoth task of building a developmental public service that responds to the needs of the people of South Africa.

I would like to extend my gratitude to all our local and international development partners who have continued to provide 

their unconditional support in contributing to the development of the South African public service and, as a result, have made 

a positive and noticeable contribution to the improvement of the lives of our people.

In conclusion, the 2010/11 annual report demonstrates that the department has achieved most of its critical objectives planned 

over the course of the year. Satisfactory progress has been made towards the achievement of the remaining objectives. The 

department will continue to explore innovative strategies to contribute towards a public service that is effective, efficient and 

development-oriented. 

Mr. MR Baloyi MP

Minister for the Public Service and Administration 
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Ms A Dlodlo, 
Deputy Minister for Public Service and Administration

DEPUTY MINISTER’S STATEMENT 

When the current administration assumed office the world was experiencing 

the effects of the global economic and financial recession. Although the impact 

on our country was minimal there was a stronger need than ever before for 

our Government to respond much more rigorously to growing calls for more 

basic quality services by our citizens. As a portfolio we needed to review our 

configuration and policy frameworks that regulate the entire public service and 

consequently the redistribution of the country’s resources. Never has there been 

more focus on the state of the public service. As we present this annual report we 

do not only reflect on the work already done but we also re-state our dedication 

to ensuring that our public service successfully addresses the challenges facing 

our young democracy.

The Ministry For Public Service and Administration (MPSA) began the year on a 

high note with a two-day MPSA Portfolio Lekgotla to look at the implications of 

the African National Congress’ (ANC) January 8 Statement on our portfolio we 

also looked at the implications of the Cabinet Makgotla held in January 2011 

the State of the Nation Address and the Budget Speech of the Minister of Finance with special focus on the 2011 Estimates of 

National Expenditure for Vote 12. In this way we were able to consolidate the vision and the strategic focus for the portfolio 

into the 2011/2012 financial year within the context of Outcome 12 of the Government’s Medium-Term Strategic Framework: 

“An efficient effective and development oriented public service and empowered fair and inclusive citizenship”.

There has been many initiatives aimed at bringing government closer to the people through the development of numerous 

integrated service delivery and access mechanisms and channels such as the Community Development Workers (CDWs) 

the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) General Mobile Units the e-Government Gateway (otherwise known as the 

Batho Pele Gateway Portal) Izimbizo Intermediaries Call Centres the Thusong Service Centre Programme and the recently 

opened pilot urban mall project in Maponya Mall in Soweto. Some of these initiatives were implemented jointly with other 

departments in line with the vision of achieving greater collaboration within and across all three spheres of government to 

provide services and information in a more responsive and integrated manner. 

This Annual Report also demonstrates how our priorities for 2010/11 are informed by our commitment to place citizens at the 

centre of service delivery as well as how we are building the necessary capacity to deliver services in an effective efficient and 

coordinated manner in order to achieve clearly defined outcomes set out by the objectives of Outcome 12. This is premised 

on the notion of a public service that works harder smarter and faster as the President appealed during his 2010 State of the 

Nation Address. 
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Managing the transformation and modernisation of the public service remains our immediate task. This task entails developing 

implementing and adhering to policies and frameworks that are consistent with the objectives of a developmental state as 

well as ensuring that monitoring and evaluation systems and tools are strengthened.

This annual report is a manifestation that although the challenge is big our hearts are bigger and together we are doing more.

Ms A Dlodlo

Deputy Minister for Public Service and Administration
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Kenny Govender

Acting Director-General

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S OVERVIEW 

I am greatly honoured to submit the Annual Report of the Department of Public 

Service and Administration for the financial year 2010/11. This is the year in which   

Government adopted the outcomes-based approach as a new way of delivering 

services and a year in which the President called upon the public service to work 

harder, faster and smarter in delivering services to the people. It is pleasing to 

report that as a department we have begun to entrench the outcomes approach 

in implementing government programmes and projects and that the entire 

public service is now firmly focused on achieving measurable targets that have 

clear and direct impact on the set outcomes. 

The Ministry for Public Service and Administration was allocated Outcome 12  

“An efficient effective and development oriented public service and an empowered 

fair and inclusive citizenship”. During the reporting period the Department 

spearheaded and coordinated the signing of the Delivery Agreement for 

Outcome 12 and institutionalized its implementation in the Governance and 

Administration Cluster through the establishment of working groups and 

technical implementation fora. The Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12 was also 

aligned with the Department’s Strategic and Annual Performance Plans to ensure 

that its programmes and projects are prioritized for implementation. 

In the first year of the implementation of the Outcome Based Approach, the Department has already developed draft frameworks, 

toolkits and policies that would greatly re-shape and position the public service towards effective the implementation of 

prioritized government objectives. On the Human Resource Management and Development programme, the following was 

achieved; (1) the development of the human resource management module of the Integrated Financial Management System 

(IFMS) and its successful piloting in the DPSA. Implementation has also started in the Free State Department of Education 

as the second pilot site; (2) the HR connect project which is a skills audit process was rolled-out to 46 departments out of 

the planned 50; (3) The human resources planning (HRP) learning material was reviewed and updated in line with the DPSA 

Strategic Framework on HRP and the HRP Toolkit of 2008, and (4) Support was provided to departments to compile their 

Human Resource Development Organisational Readiness Assessment Reports. 

The Labour Relations and Remuneration Management programme successfully launched the project aimed at recognizing past 

discriminatory pension practices. The Public Service Information and Communication Technology Management developed 

terms of reference for the implementation of e-government platform and the IT Shared Service Architecture for the public 

service was finalized and the Nama Khoi Municipality’s IT landscape was optimized.

The Service Delivery and Organisational Transformation programme coordinated the training of 1 000 officials across all 

the three spheres of government on Batho Pele Change Management Engagement using the train the trainer approach. A 

78% compliance rate was achieved in relation to government departments submitting service delivery plans focusing on 

value for money. Consultations were concluded as part of the development of regulations on community development and 

participation and the Grassroots Innovation case study booklet was disseminated across the public service.
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The Governance programme facilitated South Africa’s contribution to the ratification of the African Charter on Values and 

Principles at the AU Summit held on 25-31 January 2011. South Africa was also entrusted with the challenging yet rewarding 

responsibility of championing the All Africa Public Sector Innovation Awards. South Africa successfully marketed and 

implemented the continent awards programme resulting in the presentation of awards to winning countries and projects at 

the 7th Pan-African Conference of African Ministers for Public/Civil Service held in Nairobi-Kenya on 9-14 May 2011.

The Department also participated in all the OECD quarterly meetings and the United Nations Convention’s working groups 

that are aimed at promoting national anti-corruption values and interests. The Monitoring and Evaluation Unit assessed the 

performance of departments’ human resource policies through the public management watch system and also conducted 

employee satisfaction surveys in a number of Offices of the Premier including the Presidency. 

While we acknowledge the successes in implementing key strategic projects we are equally aware of projects that did not 

progress as planned. We are reviewing our planning approaches and will be reworking our plans to focus only on key funded 

strategic projects. 

We are confident that we have laid a firm basis for the effective implementation of Outcome 12 deliverables. Together as a 

team, we stand committed in our resolve and unwavering dedication in forging an efficient administrative apparatus that is 

able to rise to the challenge of consolidating a developmental state that is able to effectively deliver timely and quality services 

to its citizenry.

Kenny Govender

Acting Director-General
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE 

Voted Funds

Main Appropriation Adjusted Appropriation Actual Amount Spent Over/Under Expenditure

R651.484 million R658.165 million R628.165 million R30.488 million

Responsible Minister Minister for the Public Service and Administration

Administering department Department of Public Service and Administration

Accounting officer Director-General of Public Service and Administration

Aim of Vote

The aim of the Department of Public Service and Administration is to lead the modernisation of the public service by assisting 

government departments to implement their management policies, systems and structural solutions within a generally 

applicable framework of norms and standards to improve service delivery. 

Summary of Programmes

Programme 1: Administration

Programme Purpose Provide coordinated strategic and administrative support services to enable 
the ministry and the department to deliver on the mandates 

Components 

Ministry Provide political leadership to the institutions within the MPSA portfolio

Corporate Resources Management Provide administration and management function to the department through 

Information Technology, Human Capital Management, Security services, Facilities 

Management and Communications. 

Strategic Management (ODG) Support the Director-General in the overall leadership and management of the 

department and coordinate the programme of action of the G&A Cluster. 

Integrated Planning and Programme 

Management

Coordinate the department’s strategic and operational planning processes and 

monitor the departments programme performance against the strategic and 

annual operational plans

Finance Manage financial planning and budget financial assets management 

liability management accounting and accountability property and inventory 

management integrity of financial information and systems. 

Legal Services Provide legal support and legal administration to the department as a whole and 

ensure the department complies with all legal regulations. 

Internal Audit and Risk Management Support the Director-General by conducting auditing of the department’s finance 

systems and processes. Implement risk management processes and build a 

culture of risk management by ensuring that all major risks in the department 

are identified managed and reported on monitor the entire risk profile of the 

department
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Programme 2: Human Resource Management and Development in Government

Programme Purpose Develop and implement an integrated strategy to monitor employment practices. 

Conduct human resource planning and diversity management and improve the 

health and wellbeing of public service employees.

Sub-programmes 

Employment Practice and Career 

Management

Develops transversal policies, prescripts and interventions in the senior and 

middle management services. Responsible for the strategic positioning and 

delivery model of the human resource function in the public service.

Senior Management Service Ensures that there is a professional management cadre in the public service 

by establishing and implementing competency based management and 

performance management systems, through the development of transversal 

employment policies, prescripts and guidelines and other career practices for 

senior management service members.

Human Resource Planning Provides advice, develops policies, prescripts, processes and systems and conducts 

interventions to improve human resource planning at the departmental and 

macro levels.

Diversity Management Develops policy and guidelines on employment equity in the public service to 

remove barriers of access into and within the workplace for targeted groups and 

to prevent direct and indirect discrimination against designated groups through 

targeted strategies.

Employee Health and Wellness Promotes and manages health and wellness in the public service and improves 

the quality of work life through focused strategies and a holistic framework.

Human Resource Development Aims to improve the competency levels of public servants through capacity 

development activities such as internships, learnerships and skills programmes to 

ensure a constant pool of productive and contributing employees.

Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management in Government

Programme Purpose Develop and implement compensation policies and guidelines for the public 

sector. 

Ensure coordinated bargaining and effective programme management for the 

establishment of the single public service

Sub-programmes 

Remuneration and Macro Benefits Develops, implements and maintains policies, practices and systems on 

remuneration and macro benefits.

General Benefits Develops, implements and maintains policies and practices on general benefits.

Negotiations and Labour Relations Develops, implements, maintains policies and systems on labour relations for 

the public service. Ensures coordinated collective bargaining in the Public 

Service Coordinating Bargaining Council and the General Public Service Sectoral 

Bargaining Council.

Special Projects and Job Evaluation Develops, implements, manages; the human resource component of the 

integrated financial management systems project; and develops implements and 

maintains policies, practices and systems on job evaluation and grading.
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Programme 4: Information and Technology Management in Government

Programme Purpose Ensure the effective use of information technology in government. Facilitate the 

use of information technology for modernizing government and establishing 

e-government practices within an acceptable Information security environment.

Sub-programmes 

E-Government Provides support and leadership to national and provincial departments and the 

State Information Technology Agency to develop a government wide architecture 

and system integration plan.

Information and Communication 

Technology Governance

Develops policies strategies and regulations on ICT across the public service.

Oversees the State Information Technology Agency provides secretarial services 

to the Government Information Technology Officers’ Council and oversees all ICT 

initiatives in the public service.

Information and Communication 

Technology Infrastructure

Supports all national and provincial departments on significant transversal 

projects and e-government projects.

Community Development and Access Facilitates community development through access to ICT services.

Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement throughout Government

Programme Purpose Engage in supportive interventions and partnerships which improve efficiency 

and effectiveness; and innovative learning and knowledge based modes; and 

practices of service delivery in the public service.

Sub-programmes 

Service Delivery Mechanisms Engages in supportive interventions and partnerships which improve

efficiency and effectiveness.

Service Delivery Delivery Improvement 

Mechanisms

Promotes and co-ordinates the implementation of integrated service delivery 

transformation policies frameworks tools and programmes

Organizational Development of the 

Public Sector

To provide organizational development services within the Public Sector

Community Development and 

Participation

To facilitate and coordinate the implementation of community development and 

public participation programmes.

Change Management Facilitates change management initiatives of macro reform programmes and 

promotes culture change in the public service in order to improve service delivery.

Integrated Access Mechanisms To facilitate and promote integrated access to public services

Public Administration Leadership and 

Management Academy

Transfers funds to the academy which aims to enhance the quality extent and 

impact of public sector management and leadership development through 

collaboration with other training service providers compulsory training 

programmes and the facilitation of training for all spheres of government.

Centre for Public Service Innovation Unlocks innovation in the public sector and creates an enabling

environment for improved and innovative service delivery through capacity 

development activities.

Public Service Education and Training 

Authority

Transfers funds to the authority which develops coordinated framework for 

providing public service education and training.
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Programme 6: Governance for Public Service and Administration

Programme Purpose Improve governance and public administration for improved service delivery 

in Africa and other participating countries worldwide in support of the vision 

of efficiency and increased public participation in governance; fight against 

corruption.

Sub-programmes 

Public Sector Anti-Corruption Establishes and implements strategies to fight corruption and improve ethical 

conduct in the public service.

International and African Affairs Establishes and manages bilateral and multilateral relations on

governance and public administration by implementing global and continental 

programmes for improved service delivery .

Monitoring and Evaluation Manages a system for planning, monitoring and evaluating the programmes that 

enable the transformation of the public sector.

African Peer Review Mechanism Ensures the adoption of policies standards and practices that lead to

political stability, high economic growth, sustainable development and 

accelerated sub-regional and continental economic integration through sharing 

experiences and reinforcing best practices including identifying deficiencies and 

assessing capacity building needs.

Integrated Public Administration 

Reforms (Single Public Service)

Supports the Minister, Deputy Minister and Director-General in working towards 

greater public sector integration through facilitating the introduction of enabling 

frameworks, stakeholder liaison and programme co-ordination.

Research Facilitates and coordinates research within the department.

Public Service Commission Transfers funds to the commission which oversees and evaluates the functioning 

of the public service with a view to establishing good governance and best 

practice principles.

KEY STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ACHIEVEMENTS

The 2010/11 Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE) identified key strategic objectives per programme. The achievements 

against these key strategic objectives per programme are as follows;

Programme 2: Human Resource Management and Development in Government

Implementing the human resource system in two lead sites (the Department of Public Service and Administration and the Free State 

education department) by April 2011 and phasing it into the rest of the public service by 2016.

The development of the human resource management module of the Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS) was 

completed and the system was successfully piloted in the DPSA. Implementation has also started in the Free State Department 

of Education as the second pilot site.

Provide information on skills in the public service by phasing in the HR Connect skills database in all government departments by 2011.

The HR connect project which is a skills audit process was rolled-out to 46 departments out of the planned 50.

Monitoring of the implementation of the gender equality and job access strategic frameworks through quarterly reports to assess 
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national and provincial departments’ progress in attaining the set targets of 50% women at senior management service level and 2% 

persons with disabilities at all levels by 2014.

Project plans for the implementation of the Employment Equity Guide were developed in consultations with departments. 

The 2009/10 Employment Equity annual report with recommendations to accelerate appointment of women at SMS level and 

persons with disabilities across all levels was presented to Cabinet in September 2010. 

Revision of the senior management service performance management and development system through strategic framework by 

April 2011.

The department is working towards the revision of the senior management service performance management and 

development system through a strategic framework.

Annual review of the deficiencies in the human resource function at departmental level in terms of the human resource repositioning 

frameworks by identifying a 30% sample then applying the readiness assessment tool issued to departments to inform required policy 

enhancements.

The human resources planning (HRP) learning material has been reviewed and updated in line with the DPSA Strategic 

Framework on HRP and the HRP Toolkit of 2008. 

Support was provided to departments to compile their Human Resource Development Organisational Readiness Assessment 

Reports. In 2009, 116 Departments (78% compliance) submitted their reports, 99 departments (68% compliance) in April 2010 

and 74 departments (51%) in March 2010. 

Improvement of the working environment in frontline offices through capacity development and supporting 300 employee health 

and wellness managers and practitioners each year in health risk assessment and management.

The development of a comprehensive integrated health risk assessment (IHRA) tool that integrates gender disability and 

youth could not be completed as a result of the decision by the South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) to change from 

the use of a non random sample ( Non Probability sample) which was less accurate to using a probability sample . The project 

has thus been re-scoped as the use of a probability sample will be more expensive and more resources will have to be raised 

before the project can continue.

Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management in Government

Development of a human resource module of the financial management system in the public service by creating a generic human 

resource template this includes customizing and configuring the human resource system according to the needs of the public service.

The human resource module of the IFMS has been developed and the system piloted in the DPSA with implementation in the 

Free State Education Department scheduled for 2011/12.

Reviewing of pension provisioning in the public service by reporting progress to the department on discriminatory practices in pension 

provisioning by March 2010.
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In May 2010 the Minister for Public Service and Administration launched the project that seeks to recognize past discriminatory 

pension practices. The project should be finalised by March 2012. 

Implementing the agreed upon and costed practices and developing an institutional framework and governance arrangements to 

support the envisaged comprehensive social security system by March 2011.

The conducting of a dedicated investigation and development of a report on implications of social security for the public 

service could not be achieved as the Inter-Departmental Task Team (IDTT) took a decision to conduct the investigation under 

its auspices funded by Treasury due to lack of funds in the DPSA . The IDTT will decide on the date for release of the government 

position paper. The investigation will commence soon after the publishing of the consolidated government paper has been 

completed.

Improving the medical subsidy policy by implementing a revised post-retirement medical assistance provision by March 2011 for 

employees on salary levels 1 to 5 and who are members of the Government Employees Medical Scheme.

Progress against this objective could not be achieved as a result of internal human resource constraints however the work will 

be undertaken during the 2011/12 financial year

Ensuring that departments understand and implement the occupation specific dispensations by auditing the implementation on 4 

identified occupational specific dispensations by March 2012.

Due to the delays experienced in the implementation of the OSD’s the department took the decision to conduct the audit 

after all the OSD’s have been implemented so that a representative sample can be drawn from all OSDs. It is envisaged that 

the audit will be conducted in the 2011/12 financial year.

Programme 4: Information and Technology Management in Government

Implementation of a next generation e-government platform by developing a functional catalytic prototype that automates 6 pro-

poor services by the end of March 2011.

The terms of reference has been developed for the implementation of e-government platform.

Improvement of frontline service delivery by completing an ICT connectivity blueprint and bandwidth strategy for connecting schools 

libraries, clinics and municipalities by September 2010.

Progress against this objective could not be achieved as a result of internal human resource constraints, however, the work will 

be undertaken during the 2011/12 financial year.

Reducing of government’s ICT costs through printer consolidation, telecommunications (voice and data) and the way software is 

managed by March 2011.

Progress against this objective could not be achieved as a result of internal human resource constraints, however, the work will 

be undertaken during the 2011/12 financial year.
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Supporting e-government initiatives to all citizens accessing government services online by developing an online identity and access 

management strategy by March 2011.

Progress against this objective could not be achieved as a result of internal human resource constraints, however, the work will 

be undertaken during the 2011/12 financial year.

Ensuring a configured and structured government IT environment by developing a consultative government wide IT plan to assist 

departments by March 2011.

The shares services architecture is close to finalisation. The data gathering phase has been completed and the design phase 

is close to completion. 

The delays in finalizing the IT plan for the public service have been due to the Eastern Cape Province not being able to 

agree on the selection of a standards technology suite for the Directory Services. It is expected that the architectures will be 

completed by April 2011.

The Nama Khoi municipality’s IT landscape has been optimised and transformed through the IT plan project. This provides the 

department with a reference site for infrastructure optimisation within municipalities. It also aligns with the objectives of rural 

development.

Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement throughout Government

Implementation of service delivery improvement plans throughout the public sector by training 500 trainers in 2010/11 on the rollout 

of service delivery improvement plans through the Batho Pele change management engagement programme.

Over 1000 officials across all the three spheres of Government were trained on the Batho Pele Change Management 

Engagement programme using a train the trainer approach. Other departments have requested the extension of the training 

to more officials. 

In addition the Khaedu colloquium held in January 2011 as well as other workshops held by the Branch have rekindled trust 

and reliance on the DPSA on key service delivery and organisational transformation matters.

Increasing departments’ compliance in submitting annual service delivery improvement plans (from 50% in 2008/09 to 90% in 

2012/13) by giving departments content comments and reporting to Cabinet and through the auditor-general on departments’ 

submissions.

Against the annual target to have 60% of government departments submitting service delivery plans focused on value for 

money a 78% compliance rate has been achieved with continued consultations on the value for money taking place. Increased 

awareness raising was done in 10 national departments.
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Improving the rollout of the community development workers programme by implementing a policy on the programme by March 

2013.

A consultation workshop with key government departments towards developing regulations on community development 

and participation in government has been completed. Draft CDW regulations were submitted to the DPSA for consideration. 

A draft policy, which is dependent on a regulatory framework, is currently under consideration. The department is interacting 

with the Department of Cooperative Governance (DCOG) on the regulatory environment. The Finalisation of the CDW policy 

will be achieved once the regulations have been approved.

The Grassroots Innovations case study booklet, which captures the best case studies received from CDWs in different provinces, 

was disseminated across the public service.

Improving service delivery by researching and developing at least 2 sustainable models and solutions per year for innovative service 

delivery. 

An appropriate assistive device for visually impaired teachers, that will assist them to function more independently in the 

education environment, has been developed in partnership with the Department of Education and the South African National 

Council for the Blind. Training material was designed and developed and training conducted in four provinces. From October 

2010 to February 2011; 20 assistive devices were piloted and tested by visually impaired teachers throughout the country. The 

project is now ready to be handed over to the Department of Basic Education for further implementation.

The replication of the Pula-Madibogo perma-culture model was concluded at Helen Joseph Hospital. The perma-culture 

garden addresses key challenges that the hospital is faced with including the supply of fresh vegetables to the hospital 

management of food waste infection control and rehabilitation of stroke and psychiatric patients amongst others.

Establishment of collaborative innovative platforms and products by Hosting an annual public sector innovation conference, 

Rewarding innovative service delivery projects in 5 categories annually and Publishing 2 editions of the innovation journal ‘Ideas that 

Work’ per year.

In August 2010 the Centre for Public Service Innovation (CPSI) hosted the Fourth Public Sector Innovation Conference. The 

theme of the conference was “Restoring Citizens’ Dignity: Innovative Response to Public Service Delivery Challenges”.

The 8th Annual CPSI Public Sector Innovation Awards ceremony was held in November 2010. A total of 108 entries were 

received in 2010. Two of the finalists have since been nominated as category winners in the UN Public Service Awards.

The CPSI has further driven an extensive continent-wide innovation awards programme of the All Africa Public Sector Innovation 

Awards (AAPSIA) where 136 entries were received from AU member states adjudicated and rewarded at a ceremony in Nairobi 

Kenya on 13 May 2011.

Two editions of Ideas that Work, a magazine for public service innovation, were published and 12 000 copies distributed 

throughout the public service and related stakeholders. The publication has attracted international attention through a co-

publishing agreement with the Commonwealth Association for Public Administration and Management (CAPAM) and by 

becoming one of the top 50 most read documents on the United Nations Public Administration Network (UNPAN) Portal.
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Programme 6: Governance for Public Service and Administration

Ensuring that South Africa contributes to the African Agenda and benefits from International best practices in governance and public 

administration by; actively participating in, and contributing to, the programme of the 7th Pan African Ministers’ conference, the IBSA 

Trilateral and Global Governance and Exchange of best practices are promoted through construction of bilateral relations with like-

minded countries and institutions in Africa and across the world. 

South Africa immensely contributed to the ratification of the African Charter on Values and Principles at the AU Summit on 

25 – 31 January 2011.

South Africa was also considered worthy to be entrusted with the challenging yet rewarding responsibility of championing 

the All Africa Public Sector Innovation Awards. South Africa successfully marketed and implemented the continental award 

programme resulting in presentation of awards to winning countries and projects at the 7th Pan-African Conference of African 

Ministers for Public/Civil Service held in Nairobi-Kenya on 9 – 14 May 2011.

Promoting national anti-corruption values and interests at regional and international levels by participating in the (1) quarterly 

Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) working group on bribery in international business transactions;  

(2) the United Nations Convention against Corruption intergovernmental working group and; (3) the biannual United Nations 

Convention against Corruption conference of state.

The department participated in all the OECD quarterly meetings and United Nations Convention conference of state as well 

as working groups that are aimed at promoting national anti-corruption values and interests.

Monitoring and evaluation of the implementation of public service regulations/policies and programmes. 

The DPSA’s Monitoring and Evaluation Unit assessed the performance of departments human resource policies through 

the public management watch system by providing ongoing analytical and evaluation reports on the implementation of 

the Department of Public Service and Administration’s policies. The unit also conducted employee satisfaction surveys in a 

number of Offices of The Premiers including the Presidency.

The Monitoring and evaluation framework for the public service has been developed for implementation by national 

departments and offices of the premiers. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT FOR 2010/11

Human Resource Management and Development

Since 1994, extensive policies and legislation have been developed to guide human resource management and development 

practices in the Public Service. This legislative framework compels national and provincial departments to among other things 

develop and integrate strategic plans, operational plans and human resource strategies, determine organisational structures; 

compile and review job descriptions and conduct performance evaluations. 

The government and in particular the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) and the Public Service 

Commission (PSC) have put in place credible frameworks to inform the implementation of the strategic aspect of the human 

resource management value chain.

However many departments fail to implement these frameworks into practice. The Public Service continues to face substantial 

challenges around strategic planning, developing organisational structures, human resource management and development 

and career pathing. 

The current regulatory framework requires that human resource management in the Public Service may have to undergo 

considerable change to actualize the following principles:

line managers

the multi-cultural and diverse workforce of the Public Service

organisation and the needs of the employees

Labour Relations and Compensation Management 

Over the financial year the department has continued with its critical work in the public service. This includes: 

Medical Assistance, Leave, PILIR, Working Hours an a range of allowances 

 relations for the public service and; 

ensuring coordinated and collective bargaining in the Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council and the General 

Public Service Sectoral Bargaining Council.

The challenges the department experienced during the course of the financial year include:
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some instances employees are erroneously transferred

Public Sector Information Communication and Technology Management

A number of challenges have arisen from differences in approach to delivering on e-government. These are yet to be resolved 

and will continue to come up for as long as there is no buy-in from all stakeholders on the e-government prototyping approach. 

Thus far a conceptual framework for the implementation of a catalytic e-government prototype has been developed and 

further work will be done over the MTEF including design, deployment, testing and refinement.

In 2009, the department initiated a review of ICT expenditure in order to identify opportunities, for better management and 

governance and for reducing cost while enabling good public administration and accelerated service delivery. The review 

provides a basis for which a number of key cost saving interventions and better utilization and optimisation of resources will be 

identified. A blue print has been developed for a government wide security policy and will be integrated across departments 

and spheres of government.

A total of 100 Thusong Services Centers, located in remote and rural communities, have been connected to SITA and 

government back-end systems. This enables faster access to birth certificates and other government services. 

The department has developed an Information Technology Plan working together with Government IT officers (GITO) and 

IT managers in the Provincial Government of the Northern Cape. The IT plan defines the roadmap for IT in the province 

moving the province from operating IT infrastructure systems in silos to a consolidated infrastructure platform and delivery 

organisation that would streamline IT operations and provide more reliable IT services to provincial government departments.

The department has successfully executed on an IT infrastructure optimisation project for the Nama Khoi municipality. The 

project, which is funded by the municipality, has deployed technology and standards throughout the municipality. The project 

also deployed a wireless network that has connected the service delivery points within the municipality. This will ensure that 

issues of no-payment for services due to slow IT systems that have been experienced are a thing of the past. The deployment 

is seen as a model that can be replicated at municipalities of a similar profile and rural nature.

A vulnerability assessment has been conducted at the Department of Public Enterprises by the Joint task team on Information 

security vulnerability assessments. The task team has been setup by the DPSA comprising of technical experts from the State 

Security Agency the Special Investigations Unit and the State IT Agency with leadership being provided by the DPSA. This has 

been the first vulnerability assessment of its kind in government where different security agencies have worked as a team to 

assess the security posture of a government department.

Service Delivery Organizational Transformation 

The branch has been reconfigured to ensure effective service delivery during the financial year and alignment with MPSA 

service delivery agreement for Outcome 12.

 

During the reporting period 500 practitioners were trained on the rollout of service delivery improvement plans through the 

Batho Pele change management engagement programme. 
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Research has been completed on methodologies to be adopted for business process management and unit costing as well as 

an overall framework for service delivery planning and implementation. 

Research was also conducted and a concept document on National Knowledge Management Framework was developed. The 

first consultative workshop on the concept document for the Framework was held in November 2010. 

The Department has been providing guidance and advice to all Nine (9) Offices of the Premiers on provincial configurations 

in line with the National Macro Organisation of the State (NMOS) during the first six months of 2010/11. This involved overall 

project management and assistance with organisational design to give effect to the transfer of government functions 

renaming of departments and the splitting of existing departments in line with the Cabinet portfolios announced in May 

2009. Assistance was also provided to the establishment of the Office of the Chief Justice as a new department. The Office of 

the Chief Justice was listed in schedule 1 of the Public Service Act on 23 August 2010. 

The DPSA has already assisted fourteen (14) Departments that have requested assistance on organisational design matters. This 

included institutions such as the National Planning Commission, the new Department of Military Veterans, the Independent 

Complaints Directorate, the Police Secretariat and a range of provincial departments. The DPSA also provided assistance to the 

North West Legislature Administration on the redesign of their organizational structure. Assistance was also provided to the 

establishment of the Office of the Chief Justice as a new department. The Office of the Chief Justice was listed in schedule 1 

of the Public Service Act on 23 August 2010.

A concept document on the development of generic structures that include Organisational Design principles has been 

completed. Consultative workshops with the departments of Health, Social Development Education and Office of The Premiers 

were conducted. Agreements have been reached with Education Health and Social Development. Social Development 

MinMec has adopted the generic structure for Social Development for approval and implementation and the Four (4) 

provincial Departments of Social Development have already aligned their organizational structures to the approved generic 

functional structure.

A status report in the form of a Cabinet Memorandum on the processes and principles of organizational structuring in the 

Public Services was submitted to Cabinet in November 2010. As a result of this, the MPSA has been tasked to engage with 

all provincial Executive Councils in this regard. The MPSA has to date engaged the North West, the Western Cape, the Eastern 

Cape the Northern Cape, and Mpumalanga EXCOs on OD Principles and practices. 

A concept document, which will inform the changes to the directive on organizational structures has been developed. The 

development of the training modules to capacitate OD Practitioners has been finalized (in collaboration with PALAMA) and the 

pilot training programme is scheduled for April 2011. Sixty Five (65) Consultation requests on changes to the organizational 

structures of departments have been finalized.

Over One Thousand (1000) officials across all the three spheres of Government were trained on the Batho Pele Change 

Management Engagement programme using a train the trainer approach. Departments such as Health have requested 

the extension of the training to more officials. In addition the Khaedu colloquium, held in January 2011, as well as other 

workshops held by the Branch (SDOT) has rekindled trust and reliance on the DPSA on key service delivery and organisational 

transformation matters.
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The GIS will be enhanced over the medium term to include additional functionality and service delivery data. The DPSA has 

also developed a draft guideline on improving access to service points to be used by institutions when developing access 

norms and spatial plans. 

Draft regulations for the community development participating programme have been compiled. This will be followed by the 

implementation of the programme by March 2013. 

The Grassroots Innovations case study booklet, which captures the best case studies received from CDWs in different provinces, 

was disseminates across the public service.

During the first half of the 2010/11, a change readiness study for integrated processes and systems in the public service was 

completed. Support and advice was also provided to the IFMS project team in the DPSA. 

The DPSA is directly involved with the public during the Public Service Week Batho Pele and learning networks there is a need 

to increase public participation in all these events as they have immediate impact of improving service delivery. 

The department’s learning networks have been a success over the years but there is a need for monitoring and evaluation on 

the impact of the networks. 

Governance for Public Service and Administration

The Monitoring and Evaluation chief directorate was impacted directly by the introduction of the Outcome Based Approach to 

the extent that it had to re-configure its M&E framework for the public service to sufficiently reflect the emphasis laid forward 

by this new approach. The framework was consulted with various stakeholders and has been submitted to Minister for his 

approval. The M&E framework incorporates the Capacity Development Plan which is aimed at ensuring that public service 

officials are equipped with the requisite monitoring and evaluation skills. 

The effective and efficient implementation of the M&E Framework for the public services necessitated the development of 

M&E Guidelines which includes stakeholder participation, principles and standards. The chief directorate is responsible for two 

Outcome 12 projects which are; (1) Service User Satisfaction survey which is aimed at providing the opportunity to consult 

with service users about their experience in the provision and rendering of services by government and the; (2) persal clean-

up exercise which seeks to ensure that PERSAL data is accurate, reliable and assists government in strategic decision making.

South Africa has adopted a multi-agency approach to the fight against corruption and a number of departments have been 

assigned some responsibility to fight corruption in the public service. As a result, different anti-corruption structures are 

situated in different ministries. Although the area of focus is not the same there is a still a need for a coordinated approach in 

the fight against corruption within government in order to enhance service delivery. The President has established the Inter-

Ministerial Committee on Corruption to coordinate anti-corruption work. At an administrative level the DPSA should continue 

to lead the coordination of anti-corruption work and provide direct intervention to address the problem of corruption in the 

Public Service. The MPSA has responded to this by establishing the Special Anti-corruption Unit whose aim is to coordinate 

investigations and disciplinary processes relating to corruption cases in the public service.

Through South Africa’s efforts and mobilization of continental partnerships the African Charter on Values and Principles on 

Public Service and Administration was ratified by the 16th Ordinary Session of the African Union (AU Summit) on 25 – 31 
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January 2011. The ratification and subsequent implementation of the African Charter by member states will go a long way 

to augment efforts towards the realization of the African Union decade of shared values. South Africa was also entrusted 

with and successfully implemented the All Africa Public Sector Innovations Awards as well as developing a strategy for the 

implementation of the Continental Capacity Development Programme. In efforts to contribute to a better South Africa in a 

better and safer Africa for a better world; South Africa played host to delegations from Sudan Zambia Zimbabwe Namibia 

French and Vietnam. The Department has to date approached its international work in a fragmented manner and in view of 

the DPSA’s growing international work and the unstructured manner in which this is being conducted, the proposed DPSA 

International Relation Framework will ensure that the department’s international interventions are aligned to broad national 

priorities and foreign policy objectives. 

The department completed the infrastructure establishment phase of the pilot Urban Thusong Service Centre in Soweto at 

the Maponya Mall. The Centre was opened in February 2011 and by the end of the 2010/11, 10 963 citizens received services 

from the Departments of Home Affairs and Labour, Gauteng Department of Roads, Transport Gauteng Enterprise Propeller, 

Gauteng Provincial Government, Professional Job Centre and the NYDA. Citizens who required services that are not provided 

in the Centre were given information to source the services required. As the Thusong model operates on the basis of inter-

government relations; an agreement is required. Signing of the Memorandum of Agreement has been a protracted process 

and engagements to finalise this matter continues. The City of Jo’burg is still to take occupation at the Centre. . Engagements 

at the ‘extra-Parliamentary’ level on the implementation of a legislative framework for a Single Public Service ensued during the 

course of the year. The outcome of these discussions influenced the time at which planned activities could be implemented. 

An Options Document and Process Map to Parliament to support the decision making process was compiled. 

OVERVIEW OF THE ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT FOR 2010/11 

In May 2010 the Minister approved the department’s new organisational structure which included 22 priority posts which 

are in the process of being filled. The filling of these posts will strengthen the department’s capacity at both the strategic and 

operational levels and ensure that the department is able to fulfill the commitments we have made as part of our strategic 

plan for the Medium term. 

In February 2011 Mr. Themba Maseko, who was previously the Director–General of the GCIS, joined the department as the 

Director-General .

Key policy developments and legislative changes

In the period under review there were no new policy developments or legislative changes, however, the introduction of the 

Outcomes Approach, in particular the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12, had a strategic impact on the department which 

necessitated a re-focusing and alignment of our strategic plans and approaches to the deliverables in the Delivery Agreement 

to ensure that the department is appropriately positioned to deliver on Outcome 12.
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Departmental Revenue and Expenditure

Departmental Revenue

Departmental receipts for 2010/11 were generated from parking fees, interest on bursary debts, commissions on insurances 

and the recovery of the previous year’s expenditure. Due to the nature of the activities carried out by the department it is not 

required for the department to collect revenue as a core function.

Tax revenue

2007/08

Actual

R’000

2008/09

Actual

R’000

2009/10

Actual

R’000

2010/11

Target

R’000

2010/11

Actual

R’000

% of 

deviation 

from target

%

Sales of goods and services 

produced and services 

produced by departments 227 220 231 311 268 13.83%

Non-tax revenue - - - - - -

Transfers received 1 200 - - - - -

Sales of capital assets (Capital 

Revenue)

Vehicles/Furniture 0 0 1 064 - - -

Financial transactions 

(Recovery of loans and 

advances) 651 278 114 355 1 830 415.50%

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL 

RECEIPTS 2 078 498 1 409 666 2 098 215.02%

Departmental Expenditure

Programmes

Voted for 

2010/11

Roll-

overs and 

adjustments Virement Total voted

Actual 

expenditure Variance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

1.  Administration 138 787 7 218 -4 100 141 905 135 489 6 416

2.  Human Resource Management 

and Development in Government 48 903 304 -1 500 47 707 44 633 3 074

3.  Labour Relations and 

Compensation Management in 

Government 57 220 3 239 -3 400 57 059 49 095 7 964

4.  Information and Technology 

Management in Government 45 357 -1 017 -3 000 41 340 35 120 6 220

5.  Service Delivery Improvement 

throughout Government 186 663 -4756 7 230 189 137 188 728 409

6.  Governance for Public Service and 

Administration 174 554 2 181 4 770 181 505 175 100 6 405

Total 651 484 7 169 0 658 653 628 165 30 488
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The original appropriation for the department as at 1 April 2010 was R651.484 million. The amount was increased by R7.169 

million in the Adjusted Estimates increasing the total appropriation to R658.653 million.

The increase was due to:

including the increased housing allowance

During the year under review virements between the programmes were applied mainly to fund the following:

of the Public Service Education and Training Authority

Awards (AAPSIA)
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Section 3: Programme Performance
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SECTION 3: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

In 2010 the government introduced the outcomes approach and directed government departments and institutions 

to work collaboratively in implementing the identified programmes. A total of Twelve (12) Outcomes were identified for 

implementation with specific Ministers being assigned to coordinate their implementation. The Minister for Public Service and 

Administration has been allocated the responsibility to coordinate the implementation, monitoring and reporting of Outcome 

12: “An efficient effective and development oriented public service and empowered fair and inclusive citizenship.” The 

Delivery Agreement will be implemented over a period of four years (2010/14).

Since the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12 was finalised after the DPSA had tabled its 2010/14 Strategic Plan in parliament 

and also developed its 2010/11 Annual Performance Plan (APP); it was necessary for the department to align the 2010/11 APP 

to the Delivery Agreement to ensure that the targets and activities to be implemented under the Agreement are allocated 

both human and financial resources as there was no additional funding for the implementation of the Outcomes from National 

Treasury.

As a result of this alignment some of the outputs as reflected in the 2010/14 Strategic Plan were amended and re-defined and 

others were discontinued in order to prioritise activities within the Delivery Agreement and to enable their implementation 

within the available base line and human resources. 

The amended APP for 2010/11 was therefore implemented against the departments Strategic Priorities as defined in the 

Strategic Plan for 2010/14 and the Outputs as defined in the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12.

These are:

The DPSA’s 10 Strategic Priorities for 2010/14

1) To ensure improved service Delivery Quality and Access 

2) To develop effective systems structures and processes

3) To leverage ICT as a strategic resource (enabler)

4) To ensure effective employment entry into public service and HRD/cadre development

5) To develop efficient HRM practices norms and standards

6) To promote healthy safe working environments for all public servants

7) To ensure appropriate governance structures and decision-making

8) To encourage citizen engagement and Public Participation

9) To tackle corruption effectively

10) To contribute towards improved public service and administration in Africa and the international arena

The 7 outputs in the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12

Output 1: Service delivery quality and access

Output 2: HR management and development

Output 3: Business processes systems decision rights and accountability management

Output 4: Reducing corruption in the Public Service

Output 5: Nation Building and National Identity

Output 6: Citizen Participation

Output 7: Social cohesion

The implementation of Outputs 5 to 7 is co-ordinated by the Minister for Arts and Culture.
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PERFORMANCE PER PROGRAMME 

Programme 1: Administration

Purpose:

Policy strategic leadership and overall management of the department.

Measurable Objectives:

 

To provide coordinated strategic and administrative support 

Summary of achievements 

Corporate Services- Finance 

Monthly and quarterly financial reports were submitted to the Accounting Officer, the Executive Authority and National 

Treasury on the expenditure projections and revenue trends of the Department.

Corporate Services- Supply Chain 

The Asset Management Policy was reviewed to incorporate procedures for management of assets in the department. The policy 

was approved in January 2011 by the Accounting Officer. The policy was communicated to all DPSA staff and implementation 

of the policy was initiated. The Asset management policy for the department has been reviewed and approved by the 

Accounting Officer

Programme Management Office 

The department’s revised strategic plan for 2011/12 was tabled in parliamentntart on the 9th of March 2011. 

The department’s 2009/10 Annual Report was developed and submitted to the National Treasury at the end of August 2010.

The department secured donor support for eight new projects and increased its donor base by three new donors 

Office of the Director-General

The first progress report on the implementation of the Delivery Agreement for Outcome 12 was presented to the Cabinet 

Committee on Governance and Administration on the 8th March 2011.

Internal Audit and Risk Management

The Internal Audit and Risk Management Directorate performed Ten Audits during the 2010-2011 financial year.



DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

38

Corporate Services - Information Technology

The Kopanong intranet system was launched and implemented on the 23rd of November 2010.

Corporate Services -Human Capital Management

The Performance Management and Development System and the Human Resources Employment Equity Plan were 

implemented effectively in the department.

Corporate Services - Communication

Inside Dpsa and Ntirisano which are both internal publications were produced on a daily and quarterly basis respectively and 

distributed to DPSA employees 
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Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

Supply Chain 

The revised supply chain management policy could not be approved and implemented by the targeted date due to the 

number of revisions that had to be done after the consultations with stakeholders within the department. The policy was also 

revised during the process of Auditing and therefore had to be further revised to cater for findings that were raised. The policy 

will be routed for approval in the 1st quarter of 2011/12.

The Contract Management Process has been incorporated into the revised SCM Policy whose Finalisation was delayed due to 

reasons stated above.

Legal Services 

The planned revised draft Public Service Regulations to be published in the Government Gazette could not be achieved as 

a result of the MPSA’S indication that the department should rather effect amendments to the Public Service Act which will 

include amendments needed for Outcome 12 and those required to fully give effect to Amendment Act 30 of 2007. The 

version on aspects to be revised is currently being developed.

The State Information Technology Agency Amendment Bill to be introduced in Parliament was not developed as a result of 

the bill being removed by the MPSA from the Legislative Programme for 2010.

The training of public servants for enhanced knowledge of Public Service Act and Regulations could not be achieved due 

to limited human resources as one of the Directors from the Legal Service unit was assigned to the newly established Anti-

Corruption Unit within the DPSA.

Programme Management Office (PMO)

With regards to the Annual Donor Forum the Director General’s of DPSA and PALAMA agreed that in an effort to improve the 

overall coordination of donor engagement and support, a strategic donor forum must be convened for the whole MPSA. 

Preparations are underway to host the forum in 2011/12. As a result of this agreement the department’s donor forum was not 

held as planned and will be part of the planned MPSA donor forum to be convened in 2011/12

Corporate Resources Management

The training of Peer educators and support groups as part of the Implementation of the HIV / AIDS and TB project of the 

Department could not be achieved due to difficulties encountered with service providers which impacted on the scheduled 

training. 
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Programme 2: Human Resource Management and Development in Government

Purpose:

 

Develop and implement an integrated strategy monitor employment practices, conduct human resource planning and 

diversity management and improve the health and wellbeing of public service employees.

Measurable Objectives: 

Modernizing government processes by ensuring effective use of information communication and technology and promoting

e-government practices within an acceptable information security environment.

Summary of achievements 

Information Management System (IFMS)

The Human Resources generic template, which will form the basis for the future roll out of the solution, has been completed 

and the Human Resource solution has been implemented and is live in DPSA. 

Human Resource Planning and Practices 

Technical support was provided to PALAMA to assist in the development of the Human Resource Management and 

Development training programmes to be implemented within the public service as from 2012.

Support was provided to the IFMS blue printing in areas of Performance Management, Human Resource Planning, Recruitment 

and Personnel Administration, Career Management and Reporting.

Support was provided to the Administrator of PSETA 

Technical support was also provided to the Department of Performance Management Evaluation (DPME) in the development 

of an Institutional Performance Assessment Tool (PAT). They too will be used to assess the performance of department heads in 

the areas of Corporate Services management. The DPSA has been identified as one of the centre of government departments 

that will be responsible for the assessment of Human Resources Practices as part of the assessment tool.

Consultations have also commenced with sector departments on a strategy to improve staffing

The public service vacancy circular was published weekly through the DPSA website 

The programme participated in inter-departmental and inter-sectoral working groups on Human Resource and Development 

including representing MPSA on the SITA board.
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Human Resource Development 

Draft policies on e-Learning and the Recognition of Prior learning have been finalised and consulted on with departments.

A basket of mandatory programmes for public servants have been identified and a model on the costing of mandatory 

programmes has been developed. The implementation of Mandatory programmes has also been piloted.

Rural youth development programmes were undertaken in two Provinces

Senior Management Services (SMS)

A report on organizational skills requirements and SMS members’ skills gaps for 40 departments has been completed and 

signed off by the Director-General. 

A tender for the new competency assessment battery was advertised and Service Providers successfully appointed, trained 

and accredited. The new battery has been in use with effect from the 1st April 2011. 

Employee Health and Wellness 

Draft Two of the “Comprehensive integrated health risk assessment (IHRA), a tool that integrates gender disability and youth”; 

was developed. 

Mainstreaming HIV&AIDS Gender Youth and Disability across the public service 

Draft Three of the Simultaneous and Integrated Mainstreaming of HIV&AIDS, Gender and Human Rights in the context of 

managing HIV&AIDS epidemic; has been developed and will be finalized in the first quarter of 2011/12.

162 Departments participated in Ten Policy Communication and Advocacy workshops held in the first two quarters of 2010 

/ 2011. 

The piloting of Employee Health and Wellness tools and technologies has been completed 

The HIV&AIDS and TB Management Monitoring and Evaluation Plan was finalized in May 2010 

Diversity Management 

A draft policy document on Reasonable Accommodation and Assistive Devices has been completed following extensive 

consultations with departments.

 

A draft Youth Development Strategic Framework has been completed.

The virtual Women Management Week was successfully launched on the DPSA website.

The Employment Equity Guide for the public service was approved and signed by the Minister for Public Service and 

Administration.



DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

48

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

 S
e

n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

  

Id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
a

l s
ki

lls
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 S
M

S
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

’ s
ki

lls
 g

a
p

s 
in

 4
0

 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 S

M
S

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 s
ki

lls
 g

a
p

s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

se
d

 in
 4

0
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

sk
ill

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 S

M
S

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

’ s
ki

lls
 g

a
p

s 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 c

o
ve

ri
n

g
 4

0
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
. A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

av
a

ila
b

le
 in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 

co
m

p
e

te
n

c
y 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
 s

tu
d

y 
w

e
re

 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 in
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

.

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

P
o

lic
ie

s 
a

n
d

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s 
fo

r 

co
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 S

M
S

 C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
. 2

0
%

 o
f 

S
M

S
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

LD
M

S
F

)

N
o

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 in
 

th
is

 r
e

g
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti

v
it

y 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 in
cl

u
d

e
d

 in
 t

h
e

 A
P

P
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

.

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

co
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 r
u

n
 

co
n

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 o
u

tp
u

t 

a
b

o
ve

 a
s 

it
 w

a
s 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 

th
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 o
n

e
 a

b
o

ve

D
e

te
rm

in
e

 a
n

d
 a

n
a

ly
ze

 t
h

e
 

av
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
b

y 
S

M
S

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 in
 a

 p
o

st
 le

ve
l.

S
ta

b
le

 S
M

S
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 

m
in

im
u

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 

m
o

v
in

g
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
o

st
s

T
h

e
 in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 s
o

 

fa
r 

in
d

ic
a

te
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

in
 a

n
 S

M
S

 p
o

st
 is

 3
.5

 

ye
a

rs
.

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

M
S

 H
a

n
d

b
o

o
k

R
e

v
is

e
d

 S
M

S
 H

a
n

d
b

o
o

k 
th

a
t 

is
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

p
te

rs
 h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

re
v

ie
w

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

.

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 a
n

d
 li

m
it

e
d

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 r
e

le
v

a
n

t 
ro

le
 

p
la

ye
rs

.



49

DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 r

e
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

in
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 o

cc
u

p
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s 
(t

o
p

 r
a

n
ki

n
g

 s
ki

lls
) 

a
n

d
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 v
a

ca
n

c
y 

ra
te

 

re
d

u
ce

d
.

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 r

e
cr

u
it

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

re
d

u
ce

d
 t

u
rn

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e

s 
fo

r 

fi
lli

n
g

 v
a

ca
n

ci
e

s

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

to
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

u
rn

a
ro

u
n

d
 

ti
m

e
s 

fo
r 

fi
lli

n
g

 o
f 

v
a

ca
n

ci
e

s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

su
b

m
it

te
d

. 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
s 

h
a

d
 t

o
 b

e
 fi

rs
t 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

ke
n

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
b

a
se

lin
e

 t
u

rn
a

ro
u

n
d

 

ti
m

e
s 

A
ve

ra
g

e
 v

a
ca

n
c

y 
ra

te
 o

f 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s 
re

d
u

ce
d

 t
o

 

a
n

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
1

0
%

. 

T
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
lly

 

se
cu

re
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 a
t 

a
d

v
a

n
ce

d
 

st
a

g
e

 t
o

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

p
ro

v
id

e
r/

co
n

su
lt

a
n

t 
to

 c
o

n
d

u
c

t 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c

t

D
e

la
ys

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
d

 in
 t

h
e

 

se
cu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
d

o
n

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 h

a
s 

n
e

ce
ss

it
a

te
d

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 li
n

e
s 

to
 

b
e

 e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
1

/1
2

 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l y
e

a
r 

D
ir

e
c

ti
ve

 o
n

 v
e

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

q
u

a
lifi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
is

su
e

d
 a

n
d

 1
0

%
 o

f 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 h

av
e

 v
e

ri
fi

e
d

 t
h

e
 

q
u

a
lifi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
8

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 v
e

ri
fi

e
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

 

q
u

a
lifi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
w

a
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 

to
 t

h
e

 M
P

S
A

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
.

G
e

n
e

ra
lly

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 s

lo
w

 

in
 s

u
b

m
it

ti
n

g
 b

u
lk

 v
e

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 s

e
tt

lin
g

 t
h

e
ir

 d
e

b
t 

w
it

h
 

S
A

Q
A

 N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 q

u
a

lit
y 

o
f 

P
M

D
S

 

sy
st

e
m

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

th
e

re
o

f 
th

a
t 

is
 a

lig
n

e
d

 t
o

 

in
st

it
u

ti
o

n
a

l p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 p
ay

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
ce

n
ti

ve
s

R
e

v
is

e
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

a
n

d
 S

M
S

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y 

T
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

th
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 (

D
P

M
E

)

T
h

e
 d

ra
ft

 P
A

T
 m

ay
 im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

th
e

 w
ay

 f
o

rw
a

rd



DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

50

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

1
0

0
%

 C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 b

y 
se

n
io

r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

h
o

 h
av

e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
y 

st
ip

u
la

te
d

 t
im

e
.

1
0

0
%

A
 m

a
n

u
a

l s
u

rv
e

y 
w

a
s 

co
n

d
u

c
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 A
u

g
u

st
 

2
0

1
0

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

in
g

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
y 

se
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. A

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
 w

e
b

 

b
a

se
d

 s
ys

te
m

, t
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
in

g
 

o
f 

P
e

rf
o

m
a

n
ce

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
ce

p
tu

a
liz

e
d

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
d

 is
su

e
 p

o
lic

y 
o

n
 

th
e

 U
ti

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

ra
in

in
g

 

B
u

d
g

e
t.

P
o

lic
y 

fo
r 

th
e

 o
p

ti
m

u
m

 

u
ti

liz
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

.

T
h

e
 P

o
lic

y 
h

a
s 

n
o

t 
ye

t 
b

e
e

n
 

is
su

e
d

 p
e

n
d

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

o
 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

 s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s.

T
h

e
 la

ck
 o

f 
co

n
se

n
su

s 
o

n
 

th
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 

q
u

a
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 c

o
st

 s
u

ch
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

In
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 P

A
LA

M
A

, 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 b

u
ild

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ce
 w

it
h

 

ro
ll-

o
u

t.
 

In
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 P

a
la

m
a

 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l w

e
re

 q
u

a
lit

y 
a

ss
u

re
d

. 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 P
a

la
m

a
 in

 t
h

e
 

p
ilo

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
se

 c
o

u
rs

e
s.

 

T
h

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
ro

lli
n

g
-o

u
t 

th
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
re

st
s 

w
it

h
 P

a
la

m
a

. 

Tr
a

in
in

g
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 
in

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s.

2
5

 %
 o

f 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

o
ffi

ci
a

ls
 h

av
e

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

n
e

 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

N
o

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 

in
 t

h
is

 r
e

g
a

rd
, h

o
w

e
ve

r, 
in

 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 P

a
la

m
a

 a
 li

st
 

o
f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
w

a
s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 f

o
r 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w

D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
P

o
lic

y 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 m

a
n

d
a

to
ry

 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

P
o

lic
y 

o
n

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

N
o

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 

a
s 

th
e

 a
c

ti
v

it
y 

ca
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

ce
 t

h
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

o
n

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l a
n

d
 S

M
S

 

m
e

m
b

e
r’s

 s
ki

lls
 g

a
p

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

se
d

.

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w



51

DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

D
e

te
rm

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

ve
ra

g
e

 

a
n

n
u

a
l t

ra
in

in
g

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 

se
rv

a
n

t

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

a
n

ts
 

u
ti

liz
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 

a
n

n
u

a
l t

ra
in

in
g

 d
ay

s

N
o

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 

a
s 

th
e

 a
c

ti
v

it
y 

ca
n

 o
n

ly
 b

e
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 o
n

ce
 t

h
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

o
n

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l a
n

d
 S

M
S

 

m
e

m
b

e
r’s

 s
ki

lls
 g

a
p

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

se
d

.

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 H
R

 

C
o

n
n

e
c

t 
S

ys
te

m

H
R

 C
o

n
n

e
c

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 4
6

 

m
o

re
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 4

5
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

e
xc

e
p

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 W

e
st

e
rn

 

C
a

p
e

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

q
u

e
st

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 b
e

 r
e

-

sc
h

e
d

u
le

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 in
te

rn
a

l 

re
st

ru
c

tu
ri

n
g

 

A
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 s

ki
lls

 

ca
p

a
b

ili
ty

Ye
a

r 
o

n
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. R

e
p

o
rt

s 

ca
n

 b
e

 d
ra

w
n

 o
n

 s
ki

lls

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 r
e

n
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 7

3
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
e

re
 H

R
 

C
o

n
n

e
c

t 
h

a
s 

a
lr

e
a

d
y 

b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 s
ys

te
m

 

is
 u

ti
liz

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 is
 c

u
rr

e
n

t

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
7

3
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

s 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

H
u

m
a

n
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

 D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

H
R

D
S

F
)

R
e

p
o

rt
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 c
o

ve
ri

n
g

 

7
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 h
av

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 t
h

e
 H

R
D

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

Fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 H
R

D
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 o
f 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

se
lf

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

s 
a

n
a

ly
se

d
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

so
lid

a
te

d
 in

to
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

.T
h

is
 e

xe
rc

is
e

 w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 le

ve
l 

o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 in

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 

H
R

D
 

th
a

t 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

o
 

st
ru

g
g

lin
g

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce



DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

52

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 H
u

m
a

n
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

Fr
a

m
e

w
o

rk
 (

H
R

P
S

F
)

R
e

v
is

e
d

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

fo
cu

si
n

g
 o

n
 s

ki
lls

 t
re

n
d

s

T
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

is
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 

w
it

h
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
H

R
 p

la
n

s 
a

s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. T

h
is

 

o
n

g
o

in
g

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
ill

 in
fo

rm
 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 r

e
v

is
in

g
 a

g
g

re
g

a
te

d
 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 s
ki

lls
 t

re
n

d
s 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 is
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 

b
e

fo
re

 r
e

v
is

in
g

 a
g

g
re

g
a

te
d

 

re
p

o
rt

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 2

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 s

y
st

e
m

s,
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
ys

te
m

 

IF
M

S
: H

R
 S

ys
te

m
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

in
 t

h
e

 fi
rs

t 
Tw

o
 le

a
d

 s
it

e
s 

(D
P

S
A

 

a
n

d
 F

re
e

 S
ta

te
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

).

IF
M

S
: H

R
 S

ys
te

m
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

in
 D

P
S

A
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ce
 w

it
h

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 in
 F

re
e

 S
ta

te
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
 s

ys
te

m
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 in
 t

h
e

 D
P

S
A

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 in
 t

h
e

 F
re

e
 

S
ta

te
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

is
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

1
/1

2

D
e

la
ys

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 in

 t
h

e
 

p
ilo

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 D
P

S
A

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 

in
te

rn
s 

a
n

d
 le

a
rn

e
rs

Fa
ci

lit
a

te
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
2

5
 

0
0

0
 h

av
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

a
n

 in
te

rn
sh

ip
 o

r 
le

a
rn

e
rs

h
ip

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

A
s 

a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

o
n

ly
 1

4
8

2
1

 L
e

a
rn

e
rs

h
ip

s 

a
n

d
 1

3
8

0
 In

te
rn

sh
ip

s 
w

e
re

 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

ke
s 

u
p

 1
6

 

2
0

1
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 2

5
0

0
0

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 5

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
t 

H
R

M
, 

p
ra

c
ti

ce
s,

 n
o

rm
s 

a
n

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

m
p

ila
ti

o
n

 o
f 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l H

R
 

co
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 t

h
e

 

a
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

iz
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

g
o

a
ls

R
e

p
o

rt
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 S

e
lf

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

re
sp

o
n

se
s 

co
m

p
ile

d

T
h

e
 R

e
p

o
rt

 w
a

s 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
th

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

fo
r 

P
u

b
lic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
 6

T
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
, 

sa
fe

 w
o

rk
in

g
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 p
u

b
li

c
 s

e
rv

a
n

ts



53

DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

lln
e

ss

  

A
ch

ie
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt

h
y 

a
n

d
 

sa
fe

 w
o

rk
in

g
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 in
te

g
ra

te
d

 

h
e

a
lt

h
 r

is
k 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(I
H

R
A

) 
to

o
l d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

in
te

g
ra

te
s 

g
e

n
d

e
r, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

th
.

D
ra

ft
 2

 o
f 

th
e

 “
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
 r

is
k 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(I
H

R
A

) 
to

o
l t

h
a

t 

in
te

g
ra

te
s 

g
e

n
d

e
r, 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

yo
u

th
” w

a
s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
. 

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w

M
a

in
st

re
a

m
in

g
 H

IV
&

A
ID

S
, 

G
e

n
d

e
r, 

Yo
u

th
, a

n
d

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e

Fa
ci

lit
a

te
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 2

0
%

 o
f 

D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 h

av
e

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 

S
im

u
lt

a
n

e
o

u
s 

M
a

in
st

re
a

m
in

g
 

p
la

n
s 

a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

d
 in

 5
%

 o
f 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts

T
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s 
h

av
e

 b
e

e
n

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 b

u
t 

th
e

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

co
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

th
e

 r
e

-s
co

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
y 

S
A

D
E

C
 

T
h

e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s 

co
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 fi
n

a
lis

e
d

, b
e

ca
u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
is

cu
ss

 t
h

e
m

 w
it

h
 

U
N

D
P

 a
n

d
 S

A
D

C
. T

h
e

se
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

ve
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

re
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 f

o
r 

Fe
b

ru
a

ry
 

2
0

1
1

, w
e

re
 p

o
st

p
o

n
e

d
 t

o
 

M
ay

 2
0

1
1

, T
h

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 in

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
im

u
lt

a
n

e
o

u
s 

M
a

in
st

re
a

m
in

g
. 



DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

54

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
 2

: 
H

U
M

A
N

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 I

N
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
2

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

O
u

tp
u

t 
2

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
u

b
-p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
u

tp
u

t 
/i

n
d

ic
a

to
r

A
c

tu
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 a

g
a

in
st

 t
a

rg
e

t
R

e
a

so
n

 f
o

r 
V

a
ri

a
n

ce
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
H

&
W

 

P
o

lic
ie

s,
 T

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s 

R
e

a
d

in
e

ss
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

E
H

&
W

 P
o

lic
ie

s 
a

n
d

 P
ilo

ti
n

g
 o

f 

E
H

&
W

 T
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 T

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

P
ilo

ti
n

g
 o

f T
o

o
ls

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
, 

aw
a

it
in

g
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
re

su
lt

s.
 

H
IV

&
A

ID
S

 a
n

d
 T

B
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

M
&

E
 P

la
n

 fi
n

a
liz

e
d

 in
 M

ay
 2

0
1

0
. 

N
o

 v
a

ri
a

n
ce

Fa
ci

lit
a

te
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
2

5
%

 

o
f 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
ze

d
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 

h
av

e
 f

u
lly

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 E
H

&
W

 

p
o

lic
ie

s.

P
o

lic
ie

s 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

a
t 

d
iff

e
re

n
t 

le
ve

ls
 a

m
o

n
g

 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 a

s 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
d

 

b
y 

re
p

o
rt

s 
re

ce
iv

e
d

 o
n

 

th
e

 H
C

T
 C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
n

d
 

R
e

a
d

in
e

ss
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t.
 1

3
%

 o
f 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 h
av

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 E
H

W
 p

o
lic

ie
s

R
ef

er
 t

o
 R

ea
so

n
s 

fo
r 

m
a

jo
r 

va
ri

a
n

ce
s 

b
el

o
w



55

DPSA | Annual Report | 2010/11

Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

The target of ensuring that 25 000 people have completed either an internship or learnership programme within the public 

service as part of the provision of training and development opportunities for interns and learners was not achieved as a result 

of departments not complying in terms of submission of data In some cases data from PERSAL was not reliable. The effective 

functioning of the Pseta and G-SETA forum was also a contributing factor.

The implementation of a capacity development programme for the public service was not achieved as the responsibility for 

the roll-out of training programmes rests with Palama. The DPSA however has worked with Palama in the development of 

training material. 

The development of a comprehensive integrated health risk assessment (IHRA) tool that integrates gender disability and 

youth could not be completed as a result of the decision by the South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) change from 

the use of a non random sample ( Non Probability sample) which was less accurate to using a probability sample . The project 

has thus been re-scoped and as there is a need for the use of a probability sample will be more expensive more resources will 

have to be raised before the project can continue.

 

The following activities could not be completed as they were all dependent on the outcomes of the report on the analysis of 

Organisational and SMS member’s skills gaps;

have completed mandatory programmes by the end of 2011. 

SMS Capacity development programmes developed. 20% of SMS training aligned to the Leadership development and 

Management Strategic Framework (LDMSF). 

It is planned that all the above mentioned activities will be undertaken in the 2011/12 financial year.

The revision of the SMS Handbook that is aligned to the new Regulations was not completed due to lack of progress on 

the completion of the Ethics and Integrity Framework by DPSA’s Governance Branch. The Department’s branches will work 

collaboratively to ensure that the SMS Handbook is completely revised in the next financial year (2010 / 2011).

The Policy for the optimum utilization of training budgets has not yet been issued. The department is currently conducting 

a review that will ensure that the policy is comprehensive and includes public service departments spending on mandatory 

programmes.

The Revised Strategic Framework and SMS assessment methodology was not carried out due to the Department of Performance 

Monitoring and Evaluation’s processes around organisational and individual performance. Work is at advanced stage to ensure 

that both the DPSA and Department of Performance Monitoring and Evaluation work collaboratively on the revision of the 

Strategic Framework and SMS methodology. 
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The Revised aggregated report focusing on skills trends as part of the implementation of the Human Resources Planning 

Strategic Framework (HRPSF) was impacted by the delays by departments to submit their HR plans and not complying with 

HR Planning Directive due to inadequate capacity in departments. The DPSA will continue to actively engage the departments 

to submit the HR Plans.

The facilitation by the DPSA to ensure 20% of Departments have approved Simultaneous Mainstreaming plans and 

implementation commencing with 5% of departments in 2010/2011 was not achieved as the guidelines needed to be 

first in place and discussed with UNDP and SADC. These consultative meetings with UNDP and SADC which were planned 

for February 2011 were postponed to May 2011 therefore DPSA could not support departments in the development and 

implementation of the Simultaneous Mainstreaming. 

Piloting of Employee Health and Wellness Policies and Tools have been successfully completed. The Department is awaiting 

analysis results from the piloting. The HIV/AIDS and TB Management M & E Plan has been finalised. The department planned 

that 25% of departments be prioritized for full implementation of EH&W policies but at the end of the financial year the 

department managed to cover only 13% of the prioritized departments. The remaining department will be covered during 

the next financial year. 
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Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management in Government

Purpose:  

Develop and implement compensation policies and guidelines for the public sector. 

Ensure coordinated bargaining and effective programme management for the establishment of the single public service.

Measurable Objectives: 

Develop and implement compensation polices and guidelines participate and coordinate bargaining processes for the Public 

Sector

Summary of achievements 

In relation to the review of the housing allowance and policy; a formal investigation on the development of a pension secured

housing finance scheme in the public service was commissioned in July 2010. 

Draft proposals on the development of institutional framework and governance arrangement to support the comprehensive 

social security system were developed. Further work was requested after the draft was presented to the forum of Director-

General’s of institutions responsible for development of social security.

A research report has been compiled on the review of the framework on discipline and incapacity in public service and the 

Public Administration Leadership and Management Academy (PALAMA) has been requested to realign the labour relations 

training material for accreditation and roll-out. 

Resolutions on all OSDs have been signed and OSDs have been fully implemented except for the OSD for Medical and 

Therapeutic Service which will be finalised in April 2011.

OSD for engineers has been implemented in 80% of departments.

In addition to the activities in the 2010/11 operational plan the programme also undertook two additional projects; (1) to 

Institutionalise the maximum period of three months to finalise disciplinary process; to date recommendations have been 

developed and are to be presented to cabinet and; (2) the review of disciplinary and poor performance frameworks and 

policies in the public service are reviewed- which are awaiting the mandating processes for Finalisation before implementation 

in 2011/12.
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Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

The multi-term agreement on wage increases for the public service for 2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years was not achieved 

as initially envisaged due to ongoing consultations with labour representative unions and other partners. As a result only a 

single (one year) term agreement for 2010/11 was signed.

The review of current housing policy and the conclusion of outstanding matters from Resolution1/07 could not be finalised as 

the proposals are still at the level of tabling at the Public Service Co-coordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC).

An agreement to postpone the Labour Relations Summit was reached at PSCBC however parties have not further resolved on 

when to convene the Summit. 

Investigation and development of a Report on the implications of social security for the public service could not be undertaken 

as the Inter-Departmental Task Team (IDTT) took a decision to conduct the investigation under its auspices funded by National 

Treasury due to lack of funds in the DPSA. The IDTT will decide on the date for release of the government position paper. The 

investigations will then commence soon after the publishing of the consolidated government paper.
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Programme 4: Information and Technology Management in Government

Purpose:  

Ensure the effective use of information technology in government. 

Facilitate the use of information technology for modernizing government and establishing e-government practices within an 

acceptable information security environment.

Measurable Objectives: 

Modernizing government processes by ensuring effective use of information communication and technology and promoting 

e-government practices within an acceptable information security environment 

Summary of achievements 

A conceptual framework for the implementation of a catalytic e-government prototype has been developed and further work 

will be done over the MTEF including design, deployment, testing and refinement. 

In 2009 the department initiated a review of ICT expenditure in order to identify opportunities for, better management, 

governance, improved effectiveness and for reducing cost while enabling good public administration and accelerated service 

delivery. The review provides a basis for which a number of key cost saving interventions better utilization and optimisation 

of resources will be identified. 

A blue print for a government wide security policy has been developed and will be integrated across departments and spheres 

of government

An Information Technology Plan has been developed working together with Government IT officers (GITO) and IT managers in 

the Provincial Government of the Northern Cape. The IT plan defines the roadmap for IT in the province moving the province 

from operating IT infrastructure systems in silos to a consolidated infrastructure platform and delivery organisation that would 

streamline IT operations and provide more reliable IT services to the provincial government departments.

The DPSA has successfully executed on an IT infrastructure optimisation project for the Nama Khoi municipality a project 

funded by the municipality that has deployed technology and standards throughout the municipality. The project also 

deployed a wireless network that has connected the service delivery points within the municipality. This will ensure that issues 

of no-payment for services due to slow IT systems that have been experienced are a thing of the past. The deployment is seen 

as a model that can be replicated at municipalities of a similar profile and rural nature.

The Government wide IT Security policies have been developed. The purpose of the policies is to ensure that adequate access 

control measures are in place to protect information and IT resources from loss, possible data corruption, unauthorised use/ 

viewing and denial of service. In order to fulfil the Information Security Policy Statement, the policies were divided into two 

sections: (1) Information Security Policies for Information Technology Operations which is aimed at the management of IT and 

(2) Information Security Policies for Users of Information which is aimed at the users of government IT systems.
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IT Standards and Principles were developed for Distributed Computing Telecommunications (Voice and Data) and Production 

and Operations Computing.

The draft Security Governance Framework has been completed. Consultation with key stakeholders such as the GITOC Standing 

Committee on Information System Security (SCISS) and the Department of State Security has been facilitated through several 

workshops and presentations. The final framework will be developed by the DPSA and the Department of State Security in 

2011/12.

100 Thusong centres were connected to Local Area Network (LAN) and 60 Thusong centres connected to Wide Area Network 

(WAN).
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Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

The Finalisation of the IT Shared Services Architecture and designs was affected by the delays experienced as a result of Eastern 

Cape Province not being able to agree on the selection of a standards technology suite for Directory Services. It is expected 

that the architectures will be complete by April 2011. 

The initial approach for the DPSA to adopt COBIT as an IT Governance framework and implement in 3 selected departments 

was revised to first seek cabinet approval before issuing a directive. The revised approach has affected the time lines of the 

project as the process of cabinet approval is lengthy.

The development of an IT Security policy for adoption could not be completed by the end of 2011 due to internal human 

resource constraints.

Development Public Key Infrastructure (PKI) strategy for public service was not achieved because of issues raised by Depatment 

of State Security around the development of the strategy. As a result has meant that the DPSA had to adjust the deliverables 

in order to ensure that the Department of State Security remains engaged in the process. 

The Renewal of all expiring transversal tenders could not be completed due to the limited resources within SITA procurement 

processes. In an effort to fast-track the process within SITA the challenges were formally escalated to the SITA CEO.

The Automation of Six initial services on an e-Government prototype platform could not be initiated as a lengthy tendering 

process had to be followed in order to appoint a service provider to map the business processes as well as develop the 

business requirements.

IT vulnerability assessments in the public service were only done in one national department because the planning processes 

and discussions between the stakeholders took longer than expected. It was also discovered that an assessment of one national 

department can take about six month when working with part time resources from other departments as the participation of 

technical resources in the process has been on an adhoc basis. This has meant that activities could only be performed subject 

to the availability of resources from stakeholders. 
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Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement throughout Government

Purpose:

 

Engage in supportive interventions and partnerships which improve efficiency and effectiveness; and innovative learning and 

knowledge based modes; and practices of servicedelivery in the public service.

Measurable Objectives: 

Develop and implement service delivery interventions including the macro-organisation of the public service access strategy 

and enhanced citizen engagement

Summary of Achievements 

A total of 500 practitioners were trained on the rollout of service delivery improvement plans through the Batho Pele change 

management engagement programme. 

A concept document on National Knowledge Management Framework was developed. The first consultative workshop on 

the concept document for the National Knowledge Management Framework was held in November 2010. 

A concept document on the development of generic structures that include organisational development (OD) principles 

has been completed. Consultative workshops with the departments of Health Social Development Education and Office 

of the Premiers (OTPs) were conducted. Agreements were reached with the Departments of Education Health and Social 

Development. The Social Development MinMec has adopted the generic structure for Social Development, for approval and 

implementation. Four provincial Departments of Social Development have already aligned their organizational structures to 

the approved generic functional structure

A concept document, which will inform the changes to the directive on organizational structures, has been developed. The 

development of the training modules to capacitate OD Practitioners has been finalized (in collaboration with PALAMA) and the 

pilot training programme is scheduled for April 2011. A number of 65 consultation requests on changes to the organizational 

structures of departments have been finalized.

During the first half of the 2010/11 a change readiness study for integrated processes and systems in the public service was 

completed. Support and advice was also provided to the IFMS project team in the department. 

Spatial information on government service points has been posted and can be viewed on DPSA spatial portal. 

Draft regulations for the community development participating programme have been developed and will be implemented 

by March 2013. 
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Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

The department is in the process of creating a legislative environment for the Community Development Worker (CDW). To this 

end draft CDW regulations have been developed and submitted the Minister for approval. The CDW policy will be developed 

in 2011 once the regulations have been approved and finalized. 

The norms and standards for Community Development Workers were not developed because in order to develop the norms 

and standards it was necessary to first consult stakeholders including community development workers as this is a public 

participation issue. To this end consultations were conducted in 8 provinces through stakeholder workshops. The inputs 

gathered will enable the development of the guideline.

A change readiness assessment study for institutions and departments impacted by the Single Public Service was not done. 

The branch is still waiting the Finalisation of the Public Administration and Management Bill in Parliament. In the process work 

in this area was refocused to develop of the draft strategy framework on managing change in the Public Service.
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Programme 6: Governance and International Relations 

Purpose: 

 

Improve governance and public administration for improved service delivery in Africa and other participating countries 

worldwide in support of the vision of efficiency and increased public participation in governance; fight against corruption and 

carry out participatory monitoring.

Measurable Objectives: 

Promote good governance in the public service nationally and internationally through ethical conduct compliance to 

legislation and monitoring and evaluation

Summary of achievements 

Monitoring and Evaluation 

Four Employee Satisfaction surveys were conducted in the Offices of The Premier in Limpopo, North West, Free State, National 

department of Transport and Presidency. 

A Service User Satisfaction Methodology was developed and consulted with the delivery partners (GCIS and StatsSA). The 

methodology was also presented and broadly consulted with the Limpopo; Mpumalanga; Northern Cape; Kwa-Zulu Natal 

and Eastern Cape Provinces. 

The public service monitoring and evaluation framework, guidelines, glossary of terms and capacity development plan have 

been developed for implementation with government departments in 2011/12. Provincial visits on M&E Framework for the 

public service were conducted in five Offices of the Premier that is Limpopo; Mpumalanga; Northern Cape; Kwa-Zulu Natal 

and Eastern Cape. Consultations in remaining Provinces will be conducted in 2011/2012 financial year.

The M&E human capacity questionnaires have been developed and piloted in five Offices of the Premier. The capacity 

development sessions will commence in 2011/2012. 23 officials from different DPSA branches were trained on the Introduction 

to M&E facilitated by PALAMA

Stakeholder Information Needs Analyses were conducted in MPSA (DPSA; PALAMA; GEMS and CPSI) and with departments at 

the centre of government that is National Treasury; Office of the Public Service Commission and COGTA. 

M&E information requirements were consolidated and reports produced. Four analytical and evaluation reports on the 

implementation of the Department of Public Service and Administration’s policies across the public service were produced 

through the public management watch (PMW) system. 

A strategy, to improve and maintain the quality of data within PERSAL, was developed and is being implemented to strengthen 

the monitoring of HR Policies within the Public Service. The publishing of a Strategic HR Performance Report forms part of the 

strategy and these reports were developed and are disseminated on a quarterly basis.
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An M&E portal was also developed and rolled out within the DPSA to enable policy owners within the department to monitor 

the implementation of their policies within the Public Service 

International and African Affairs 

The department hosted a number of events that were attended by delegations from different countries. These include; the 

Southern African Development Community Senior Officials Steering Committee from which a strategy on the establishment 

of a SADC public administration cluster was developed; the Continental Capacity Developmental Programme from which 

strategy on continental capacity building programme was developed; the branch also coordinated dpsa’s representation 

at the champion and Bureau meetings in Maputo Mozambique and Nairobi Kenya and coordinated the implementation 

of AAPSIA and the 32nd African Association of Public Administration and Management (AAPAM) Round-Table Conference 

attended by more than 300 delegates from across the continent. 

The department also hosted various delegations which included; Eleven officials from the Ministry of Home Affairs in Vietnam 

who learned of the South African HR Performance Management System and current remuneration approach; Six officials from 

Zambia who on the South Africa’s Senior Management Service benefit packages; Six officials from Zimbabwe on conditions 

of service and good labour standards, Six officials from France on recruitment and selection processes and Six Namibians on 

Job Evaluations and remuneration packages for Public Service. The DPSA participated in the Senior Officials’ meeting on RSA 

– Kenya JCC and also coordinated a fact finding mission for the DDG: Governance to DRC and the study tour for the Sudanese 

head of service. 

The Ministry for Public Service and Administration participated in the 8th RSA-India JMC, co-Chaired the Human Resource and 

Development sub-committee as well as the 7th meeting of the IBSA Working Group on Public Administration. The Branch 

facilitated the Deputy Minister’s visit to China to advance RSA – China bilateral relations and Ministers’ travel to Malta for the 

CAPAM meeting. 

African Peer Review Mechanism

The African Peer Review Mechanism Plan of Action (APRM) was developed and the 2010 Annual report submitted.Furthermore 

the National APRM Framework for institutionalising the APRM programme in the national development process was drafted 

and initial stakeholder consultations conducted. 

The DPSA influenced the continental agenda and public service reform through making Inputs (1) to the final draft of the 

African Public Service Charter which was ratified by the AU in Jan 2011; (2) the final draft of the Long Term Strategy for the 

implementation of the Continental Governance and Public Administration Programme (2) and (3) to the AAPSIA Marketing 

and Adjudication processes. The DPSA also developed a Strategy for the Continental Capacity Development Programme

Integrated Public Administration Reforms

As part of its strategic thrust to enhance and deepen access initiatives in the country; the DPSA together with national 

provincial and local partners ensured the achievement of the infrastructure establishment phase of a pilot urban mall in 

Soweto which was opened in February 2011.
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In supporting the Minister’s consultative processes on the Single Public Service, an options document and a Process Map to 

Parliament has been compiled.

Integrity and Ethics Management

The Special Anti-corruption Unit was launched on the 25th  of November 2010.

The drafting of the Public Sector Integrity Management Framework was completed.

The DPSA assisted the Democratic Republic of Congo in developing an anti-corruption strategy. The strategy was handed over 

to the government of the DRC at a ceremony that was held in October 2010 in Kinshasa.

The development of the NQF 4 anti-corruption training programme was completed by 31 May 2010. A total of 860 officials 

were trained in the Public Service by 31 March 2010. 

The development of the NQF 5 anti-corruption training programme was completed and submitted to PSETA for accreditation 

by 31 March 2010. 

The Anti-corruption training programme for business officials was completed in June 2010 and a total of 1081 officials were 

trained nationally.

The RSA-Phase 2 evaluation report was completed and approved in June 2010 by the OECD Working Group on Bribery. The 

implementation Plan was developed and consultations were held with various stakeholders. 
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Reasons for major variances between target and actual 

The Aligned Strategy toward the development of overarching legislation for the SPS could not be developed as work in this 

area was dependent on the outcome of discussions at the political level. In December 2010 the Minister for Public Service 

and Administration announced his preferred option which requires amending of existing legislation as opposed to the 

introduction of a new piece of legislation. A Cabinet memo has been developed which details activities to be performed 

from consultations; for Cabinet approval and tabling in Parliament. The draft Public Service Act Amendment Bill will then be 

submitted to Cabinet for approval to consult at NEDLAC, discussed at NEDLAC and resubmitted to Cabinet, and upon Cabinet 

approval be tabled in Parliament. 

The target of 70% of disciplinary cases concluded by the Special Anti-Corruption Unit (SACU), could not be undertaken as the 

capacity of the Unit still needs to be strengthened to assist in achieving its objectives. A feasibility study is been conducted 

which will include the determination of the corporate form and organisational structure for SACU.
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NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

for the year ended 31 March 2011

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2011.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance:

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least four times per annum as per its 

approved terms of reference. During the current year six meetings were held.

Name of Member Attended     Number of Meetings 

Mr. M Dukandar (Chairperson)      6

Dr. DP van der Nest       6

Ms. M Manyama–Matome (contract expired 30 April 2010)   1

Ms. R van Wyk        6

Ms. Z Mtshazo (appointed 1 September 2010)    1

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38(1)(a) of the Public Finance 

Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal 

terms of reference as its committee charter has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its 

responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

In line with the PFMA requirements Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the 

internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process as well as the 

identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements and the management 

report of the Auditor-General it was noted that matters were reported indicating deficiencies in the system of internal control 

and in particular supply chain management human resources and the performance information environment. Attention 

needs to be paid to ensure that performance information is relevant reliable and measurable in compliance with the PFMA. 

In many instances the matters reported previously have not been fully and satisfactorily addressed. The committee views the 

non-compliance with the internal procedures as an area for receiving urgent attention. A further area of concern is the high 

vacancy rates within the department especially at senior management level. The Audit Committee will monitor these issues 

going forward.
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Accordingly we can report that the system of internal control was not entirely effective for the year under review. Management 

has acknowledged that these issues must be addressed urgently and has assured the committee that measures are being 

introduced.

 

The Audit Committee believes that the prolonged time taken to fill the key posts of the Accounting Officer and the CFO has 

impacted the stability and the morale within the department. Both posts were filled after being vacant for one and four years 

respectively. We are concerned that the accounting officer’s post is vacant once again and recommend that it be filled as soon 

as possible.

The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division 

of Revenue Act.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the 

Accounting Officer of the Department during the year under review. It was however 

noted that the reporting of performance information against set objectives is an area for urgent attention.

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has: 

the acting Accounting Officer; 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial statements and is of the 

opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

Internal audit

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks 

pertinent to the department in its audits. 

Auditor-General South Africa

The Audit Committee has met with the Auditor-General South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.
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Conclusion

The Audit Committee wishes to thank the acting Director-General and the relevant staff of DPSA for their continued commitment 

to the good governance of the Department. The Audit Committee also congratulates the department for another unqualified 

audit report for the year under review. Our appreciation is also extended to the Chief Financial Officer and the finance team 

for their efforts regarding the financial statements for the year and to the team from the Auditor-General for the value they 

continue to add to the Department. 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date:
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NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2011

REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

AND PARLIAMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA.

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

The functions of the Department of Public Service and Administration in terms of its constitutional and legislative mandate 

are to: transform and modernise the public service; oversee changes to the structure of the public service; establish norms and 

standards for human resources and development conditions of services labour relations information technology and service 

delivery; issue directives and regulation for the public service; formulate the national anti-corruption strategy; and exercise 

oversight over the State Information Technology Agency (SITA).

Informed by government’s major priorities the department has adopted five overarching strategic objectives for the 2010/11 

financial years:

and international spheres.

1.1 Important policy decisions and strategic issues facing the department

In 2010 the government introduced the outcomes approach and directed government departments and institutions to 

work collaboratively in implementing selected programmes and initiatives aimed at improving service delivery. A total of 12 

Outcomes were identified for implementation with specific ministers being assigned to coordinate their implementation. 

The Minister for Public Service and Administration has been allocated the responsibility to coordinate the implementation 

monitoring and reporting on Outcome 12: An efficient effective and development oriented public service and empowered fair and 

inclusive citizenship which is aimed at improving the administration governance and overall performance of the public service 

for improved service delivery. The Minster for Public Service and Administration also entered into a Performance Agreement 

with the President. The performance agreement is a mechanism to implement the prioritised areas where focus will be put to 

improve the public service. 

1) The department has in the 2010 strategic plan identified the following 10 Strategic objectives that will guide its activities 

and focus over the Medium-Term;

2) Service delivery quality and access

3) Effective systems structures and processes

4) Leverage information and communication technology (ICT) as a strategic resource (enabler) 

5) Effective employment entry into public service and human resource development (HRD)/cadre development

6) Efficient human resource management (HRM) practices norms and standards

7) Healthy safe working environments for all public servants

8) Appropriate governance structures and decision-making

9) Citizen engagement and public participation

10) Corruption tackled effectively

Contribution towards improved public service and administration in Africa and international arena
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NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1.2 Legislation

 

Public Administration Management Bill (PAMB)

In 2006 Cabinet approved the development of a Single Public Service (SPS). This involved the design of framework legislation 

and regulations for all three spheres of government. The Public Administration Management Bill was introduced in the National 

Assembly in June 2008 after an extensive consultation process and Cabinet’s approval for its introduction in May 2008. In 

November 2008 the Bill was withdrawn by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration. During 2010/11 work in 

this area was dependent on the outcome of discussions at the political level. Options were developed to take the legislative 

process forward. In December 2010 the Minister for the Public Service and Administration indicated his preferred option 

namely to amend the Public Service Act and related legislation instead of bringing a new piece of legislation. Preparation of 

documentation to obtain Cabinet’s approval for this option is underway.

Draft Public Service Regulations

After the changes in the Public Service Amendment Act 2007 a process to review the Public Service Regulations of 2001 

commenced. Draft regulations were prepared and comments from all government departments and the trade unions 

represented at the PSCBC were obtained and considered. The draft Public Service Regulations were prepared and submitted 

to the Minister for Public Service and Administration for consideration. The Minister however indicated amendments to 

Public Service Act will require a new set of regulations after adoption of amendments by Parliament. Therefore the new set of 

regulations is no longer proposed but only amendments are needed for Outcome 12 and those required to fully give effect to 

the Amendment Act (Act 30 of 2007). Work is in process on these amendments.

1.3 Significant events

The 32nd Roundtable Conference of the African Association for Public Administration and Management (AAPAM) was co-hosted 

and organised by the DPSA on behalf of the Government of the Republic of South Africa and the AAPAM-SA in Durban South 

Africa from 15 to 19 of November 2010. 270 delegates from 27 countries attended the conference. Among the participants 

were Cabinet Ministers; Heads of Public/Civil Services and Secretaries to Cabinet; Permanent/Principal Secretaries and other 

high ranking Government Officials; Chairpersons and Commissioners of Public Service Commissions; Heads of Management 

Development Institutes; Development Partners; representatives of Statutory Institutions; scholars and researchers. The 

delegates also included fifteen AAPAM Young Professionals. The overall objective of this roundtable was to focus attention on 

the unique responsibilities that strategic visioning places on national public administration systems.

During November 2010 the Centre for Public Service Innovation (CPSI) successfully hosted the 8th Annual Public Sector 

Innovation Awards. A total of 108 entries were received. The winner was also a CAPAM Award finalist whist three other finalists 

and two past finalists were also selected as finalists for the UN Public Sector Awards. One of these the IEC Result slip scanning 

project will be awarded the UN Public Sector Award on 23 June 2011.
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VOTE 11

Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2011

1.4 Major projects undertaken during the year

Human Resource Management and Development

This programmes’ major contribution during the year under review relates to the strategic output to develop effective systems 

structures and processes. The objective is to develop and implement an integrated HRD strategy monitor employment 

practices conduct human resource planning and diversity management and improve the health and wellbeing of public 

service employees. In accomplishing this objective the following were achieved:

HR Connect project

The implementation of the HR Connect project in 46 departments continued during the 2010/11 financial year. The departmental 

supervisor briefings were completed and survey forms were printed and distributed to participating departments. Seven 

education departments’ printing and supervisor briefings were delayed in the 4th quarter due to the finalisation of educator 

and specialist profiles in conjunction with the Department of Basic Education. Due to significant structural changes as a result 

of the restructuring exercise in the Western Cape (together with the roll-out of a shared services model) the implementation 

of HR Connect in the Western Cape had to be stopped temporarily. The Western Cape has indicated that the process can be 

completed in 2011/12.

Labour Relations and Compensation Management

Conditions of services

During the 2010/11 financial year the DPSA conducted an investigation into the development and implementation of a 

revised housing policy for the improvement of home ownership in the public service Proposals for a Housing Finance Scheme 

in the public service were also developed. Further analysis and refinement of these proposals is currently underway.

This programme was also tasked with the review of the Exit Management Strategy in the public service. The objective of this 

strategy is to facilitate a seamless process from government departments to the Government Pension Administration Agency 

(GPAA) as well as to shorten the waiting periods for pension payouts. A survey and data collection process commenced during 

2010/11.

Salary Negotiations

Public service negotiations for salaries and improvement on conditions of service commenced on 16 April 2010. Following 

protracted negotiations without reaching a settlement labour parties declared a deadlock. Labour parties subsequently 

commenced with industrial action which commenced on 18 August to 06 September 2010. The strike was characterised by 

high incidents of intimidation which was accompanied by incidents of assault on non-striking employees and community 

volunteers. There have been reports on damage to government property at a national and provincial level. It is noteworthy 

that the public service has been relatively stable since the advent of democracy; in total we have had two major public service 

strikes 2007 and 2010 respectively in 16 years. Although the strikes were few numerically their impact on the delivery of public 

services was however felt by society as a whole.
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Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS)

IFMS is a joint project between DPSA National Treasury and the State Information Technology Agency. DPSA is the custodian 

of the HR module of this project. In 2009 the appointment of the selected service provider was finalised and the blueprint 

for the HR generic template which forms the basis of the HR module was developed. In the 2010/11 financial year the 

implementation of the newly developed HR model kicked off in the first two lead sites namely the DPSA and the Free State 

Education department. The first users in the DPSA pilot site started using the system with effect from 29 November 2010. 

The implementation process in the Free State Department of Education is also underway with the blueprint workshops that 

commenced in November 2010.

Urban Thusong Centre

One of the major initiatives of government is the introduction of the Single Public Service initiative that seeks as one of its 

objectives to bring the three spheres of government together to ensure a greater move toward more joined up and integrated 

approaches with the delivery of services. To test different modalities government decided to embark on a pilot project with 

the aim of establishing a ‘Government one-stop-shop’ in a shopping complex that offers citizens access to information and 

services from all three spheres of government and agencies from a common access point. In 2008 a three year Lease Agreement 

was secured to lease space at the Maponya Mall in Soweto for the purpose of establishing a Thusong Service Centre. The 

DPSA Developed the Business Processes an Operational Manual Occupational Health and Safety Procedures and House Rules. 

The infrastructure which included: development of the lay-out and design Construction of the Centre ICT infrastructure 

installation security infrastructure installation; furniture and fittings and the branding of the Centre were established. To date 

all the departments and institutions except the City of Johannesburg have moved into the centre and started to provide their 

respective services. The Centre was opened in February 2011 and for the months of February and March 10 693 citizens were 

served.

Information and Communication Technology

ICT Connectivity of Thusong Service Centres

The Thusong Service Centre Programme formerly known as the MPCC Programme was established by government in 1999. 

The purpose of these centres is to provide access to integrated government services and information to communities in 

remote rural areas which have less access to services than those in urban areas.

The DPSA together with the State Information Technology Agency (SITA) have deployed a shared ICT platform that allows 

departments to securely connect to their respective back end systems and applications in order to provide automated services 

where these exist. To date the DPSA has successfully connected 83 centres to the shared ICT platform. In order to ensure the 

continued success of these centres all departments that are located in these centres were requested to provide assistance 

with the following: An annual contribution of R3 million to fund the operational costs associated with connecting Thusong 

Service Centres; provision of computer equipment (printers and desktops) to enable their staff members to access their back 

end systems from the centres; training of their staff members to use the computers and line of business applications relevant 

to the work of the department; and Officials and related infrastructure be deployed to centres in non-serviced areas to allow 

their departments to extend their service footprint and services to these rural communities.
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Service Delivery Improvement 

Batho Pele

The concept document to re-focus BPIA to ensure alignment with outcome 12 and other government priorities were finalised 

during 2010/11. The outreach programme of the Minister for Public Service and Administration was also rescheduled and re 

focussed. The Khaedu programme was re-conceptualised for better implementation of Batho Pele.

Frameworks and methodologies

During the year under review frameworks and methodologies on: Service Delivery Models; Business processes; quality 

management; standard operating procedures; setting of service standards; service charters and service delivery improvement 

were drafted and consulted. These frameworks are currently awaiting approval.

Community service delivery forums

A concept document on the national service delivery and transformation steering committee was approved and launched 

during March 2011 with all nine provinces and national departments.

Organisational structures

Inputs from consultation workshops with national and provincial departments have been consolidated and a final national 

consultation workshop has been conducted in March 2011. A concept document has been developed which will inform the 

changes to the directives on organisational structures. The development of the training modules to capacitate Organisational 

Development (OD) practitioners has been finalised in collaboration with PALAMA and the pilot training programme 

commenced in April 2011. In total 65 consultation requests on changes to organisational structures of departments have 

been finalised.

Center for Public Service Innovation (CPSI) 

During the year under review the CPSI successful replicated a perma-culture model at Helen Joseph Hospital where it improves 

food waste management patient therapy and the nutritional value of food served at the hospital. This model has been shared 

with all Gauteng hospital Chief Executive Officers.

The piloting and testing of an assistive device for visually impaired teachers were successfully concluded and the device will 

be handed over to the Minister of Basic Education at the DPSA 2011 Budget Vote ceremony.

CPSI continued to be amongst the top three up-loaders of content to the United Nations Public Administration Network 

(UNPAN) Portal with 1 479 uploads between April 2010 and March 2011. SADC usage of the portal continued to be high with 

South Africa being the 2nd highest user country after the United States. CPSI was awarded two United Nations awards in 2010 

for their valuable contribution to the Portal. 

The Multi-Media Innovation Centre (MMIC) was launched by the Minister for Public Service and Administration in June 2010. 

There is an overwhelming demand for the use of the centre by departments and the private sector. It has already been used 
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by departments such as Correctional Services Gauteng Provincial Administration Agriculture and Social Development and 

donors such as GIZ and BTC.

Two editions of the journal Ideas that Work have been published and disseminated and Commonwealth Association for Public 

Administration and Management (CAPAM) requested the CPSI to share and exchange content for cross-publication.

Governance

Ethics and integrity management

On 25 November 2010 the Special Anti-corruption unit was launched and the draft Public Sector Integrity Management 

Framework was tabled for consultation. The DPSA as a coordinator of South Africa facilitated the adoption of the phase 2 

Evaluation Report in relation to compliance with the accepted international anti-corruption instruments in a working group 

during June 2010. In the area of the Democratic Republic of the Congo (DRC) anti-corruption programme the first national 

anti-corruption summit and a roundtable of experts were held and the DRC anti-corruption Strategy was launched.

African Peer Review Mechanism

South Africa tabled its Second Report on the Implementation of the National Programme of Action (NPoA) at the 14th Summit 

of the Committee of participating Heads of State and Government of the African Peer Review Mechanism (APR Forum) in 

January 2011. The Report covers the period from January 2009 to November 2010 and details the overall assessment of the 

implementation of the NPoA. The report was well received 

Monitoring and Evaluation

A Monitoring and Evaluation Framework and guidelines for the public service were developed and submitted for editing 

layout design and printing. Monitoring and evaluation stakeholder information needs were conducted in the Portfolio for the 

Minister for Public Service and Administration and other transversal departments. Consultation reports on these information 

needs analysis were produced. Employee Satisfaction surveys have been conducted and comprehensive reports were 

produced for the Office of the Premier (Limpopo) the Office of the Premier (North West) the Office of the Premier (Free State) 

and the Presidency.

PERSAL Cleanup

The PERSAL Cleanup Strategy has been approved and a Strategic HR performance report was developed and populated with 

each department’s information. These reports were circulated in February 2011 and will be circulated on an annual basis. Seven 

provincial workshops were held to introduce this strategy and to obtain buy in for the project. Presentations were also done 

at the PERSAL User Forum and the Governance and Administration (G&A) Directors General Cluster to introduce the strategy.
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1.5 Spending trends

The original appropriation for the department as on 1 April 2010 amounted to R651.5 million. In the Adjusted Estimates the 

appropriation was increased with R7.1 million to a total budget allocation of R658.6 million for the 2010/11 financial year. The 

increase was appropriated to cover R4.6 million under compensation of employees due to higher personnel remuneration 

increases and housing allowance increase and an amount of R2.5 million as a roll over from the previous financial year for the 

HR Connect cohort project.

Of the amount of R658.6 million 27% contributed towards the compensation of employees 34% towards operational funding 

for the DPSA and 39% was in relation to transfer payments to PALAMA and the Office of the Public Service Commission. The 

total spending for the year calculates to 95.37% which leaves an amount of R30 488 000 or 4 63% unspent.

Although spending started very slow in April 2010 with only R31 million spending the months between May and October 

indicated an average spending of R47 million per month. During November 2011 the spending increased to R80.8 million 

mainly due to the reclassification of the PSETA transfer funding and therefore bringing all PSETA expenditure into the books 

from a suspense account. The next three months again had an average spending of R50 million per month. The final expenditure 

for the month of March 2011 amounted to R85.4 million and is made up as follows: Compensation of Employees amounted 

to R14.7 million; Goods and Services amounted to R47.5 million; An amount of R43 000 was spent on the interest payments 

on leased assets; Transfers and Subsidies amounted to R20.2 million; and payment of capital assets amounted to R2 million. 

The following expenses were high cost drivers for the month of March 2011:

Description
March 2011

R’000

Computer services 20 162

Lease payments (Incl. operating leases excl. finance leases) 7 525

Inventory: Stationery and printing 3 788

Travel and subsistence 3 032

Property payments 2 499

Contractors 2 323

Consultants and professional service: Business and advisory service 1 942

Venues and facilities 1 415

 

The 4 63% under spending was mainly due to:

Compensation of Employees

The amount of R3.9 million is in relation to compensation of employees due to vacancies in the department.
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Goods and Services

The total amount of under spending calculates to R25.6 million. The Programmes contributed to the under spending as follows:

Programme 1: R5.1 million – low spending in the area of Internal: IT a delay in the finalisation of a bid for video conferencing 

equipment and slow spending on resettlement and advertisement cost.

Programme 2: R2.6 million - due to a delay in the finalisation of HR Connect the postponement of the HIV Counselling and 

Testing Campaign and a delay in the printing of Human Resource Development Strategic Framework (HRDSF) books. 

Programme 3: R7.1 million – lower than anticipated spending on the Urban Thusong Centre in Maponya Mall and the 

postponement of the official launch of this centre.

Programme 4: R5.6 million – lower than anticipated spending on SITA services provided by the State Information Technology 

Agency and lower than anticipated travel costs.

Programme 5: R310 000 - minimal saving on various items.

Programme 6: R4.9 million – lower than anticipated spending on the Special Anti- Corruption Unit and International African 

Affairs.

Transfers and Subsidies

Transfer payments to PALAMA and the Office of the Public Service Commission were done on month to month bases up 

to 100% of the transfer funding classification. The funding for PSETA that was originally classified as a transfer payment was 

reclassified during the Adjusted Estimates and therefore no longer reflects as a transfer payment. 

Payment of Capital Assets

Under spending of R764 000 is mainly due to low spending on IT equipment.
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1.6 Virement

Two virements were approved and implemented during the Adjustments Estimate process. 

Virement 1

Transfers and subsidies to foreign governments and international organisations were increase with R203 000 to make provision 

for a subscription fee for the Centre for Training and Research in Administration for Development.

Virement 2

Shifting of funds amounting to R8.1 million from Goods and Services to Compensation of Employees within programmes in 

the Department as a result of organisational structural changes. Goods and Services were reduced as follows:

Programme 1: Administration R 562 000

Programme 2: Human Resources Management and Development R2 438 000

Programme 3: Management of Compensation R2 164 000

Programme 4: Information and Technology Management R 282 000

Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement R1 841 000

Programme 6: Governance for Public Service and Administration R 855 000

After the Adjusted Estimates the following virements were approved and applied:

Virement 3

Reclassification of the amount appropriated of R20 million for the Public Service Education and Training Authority (PSETA) from 

being a transfer payment to the following classification: Compensation of employees (R9.8 million); Goods and services (R9.4 

million) Transfers and subsidies (household) (R828 000) and payment of capital assets (R17 000). 

PSETA was registered as a public entity on 28 April 2006 and transfer payments for PSETA amounting to R20 million were 

appropriated to the department in the 2010/11 financial year. The department anticipated to make quarterly transfer payments 

to PSETA provided that PSETA has the appropriate infrastructure capacity and financial systems in place. As an interim 

arrangement the department assisted PSETA with operational support (i.e. human resources procurement and finance). This 

arrangement was made to provide PSETA with sufficient time to establish the required systems and internal controls. Due to 

the lack of effective and efficient systems of controls PSETA was not be able to adhere to the requirements set out in the Public 

Finance Management Act section 38 (1) (j) and Treasury Regulations 8.4.2. It is for that reason that the funds were reclassified 

and the PSETA expenditure is therefore reflected in the books of the Department of Public Service and Administration. 

Virement 4

Due to the Public Service Education and Training Authority being placed under administration which resulted in additional 

costs a total amount of R6 million was reallocated to Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement as follows: R4.1 million 

from Programme 1: Administration; R1.5 million from Programme 2: Human Resource Management and Development; and 

R400 000 from Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management. The ring fenced funding of the Centre for 

Public Service Innovation (CPSI) situated in Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement was increased by R4.4 million mainly 
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to fund the AAPSIA conference that was hosted by the CPSI and was contributed to as follows: R3.1 million reallocation 

within the same programme and R1.2 million from Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management. For the 

establishment of the Special Anti Corruption Unit an amount of R1.6 million was reallocated within the same programme and 

funding amounting to R1.2 million was sourced from Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management. An 

amount of R2.3 million was moved from Programme 4: Information and Technology Management to supplement the funding 

for expenditure related to the African Peer Review Mechanism. The funding allocation for hosting of the AAPAM conference 

was increased with R1.4 million by relocating R130 000 within the same programme; R700 000 from Programme 4: Information 

and Technology Management and R570 000 from Programme 3: Labour Relations and Compensation Management.

Virement 5

Minor virements were effected to increase the economic classification: Transfers and subsidies to organisations/institutions in 

order to defray over expenditure. The detail is as follows: International Institute of Administrative Sciences subscription fees 

amounted to R21 813.99 and this amount was not budgeted for in the 2010/11 financial year. An amount of R21 812.00 was 

identified from the Goods and Services budget.

A R1 000.00 was donated to a church by the Public Service Education and Training Authority as a courtesy gesture for allowing 

Public Service Training Authority to host their annual end-year function at their premises and therefore it was necessary to 

increase transfers to non profit institutions with R1 000.00.

All virements were approved by the Accounting Officer and National Treasury.

1.7 Other material matters 

 

During the year under review the department identified irregular expenditure to the amount of R 12 million which was mainly 

due to non compliance with procurement procedures. Investigations into these cases are still in progress and disciplinary 

action will be taken as soon as the investigations have been finalised. The department has put in place additional controls to 

prevent a recurrence of this type of expenditure. The controls include checklists for issuing of orders and payment of invoices 

several training sessions and awareness at management level and a review of the department SCM policy.

2. Service rendered by the department

2.1 List of services 

The department functioned within six programmes for the year under review.

Administration

The administration programme provides policy strategic leadership management and administrative supports services to 

enable the ministry and the department to deliver on the mandates. The programme support services such as ministerial 

support legal services communication internal audit and corporate services.
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Direct functional support to the Minister is performed by the following programmes:

Human Resource Management and Development in Government

This programme aims to develop and implement an integrated strategy monitor employment practices conduct human 

resource planning and diversity management and improve the health and wellbeing of public service employees.

Labour Relations and Compensation Management in Government

This programme focuses on the development and implementation of compensation policies and guidelines for the public 

sector and ensure coordinated bargaining and effective programme management for the establishment of the single public 

service.

Information and Technology Management in Government

The focus of this programme is to ensure the effective use of information technology in government and to facilitate the 

use of information technology for modernising government and establishing e-government practices within an acceptable 

information security environment.

Service Delivery Improvement throughout Government

This programme engages in supportive interventions and partnerships that improves efficiency and effectiveness and also 

engages in innovative learning and knowledge-based modes and practices of service delivery.

Governance for Public Service and Administration

This programme deals with improving governance and public administration for improved service delivery in Africa and other 

participating countries worldwide in support of the vision of efficiency and increased public participation in governance 

fighting corruption and carrying out participatory monitoring.

2.2 Tariff policy

The department does not charge any tariffs for services rendered.

2.3 Free Services

The department does not charge for services rendered in the form of deployment of personnel or the assistance it provides 

for institutional capacity building.
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2.4 Inventories

Inventories on hand at year end amounts:

ITEM R’000

Stationery  391

Computer consumables  217

Other  21

TOTAL  629

Inventories were valued on a weighted Average Cost basis. 

3. Capacity constraints

Over the last few years the department has been facing capacity constraints due to a constrained compensation budget. 

Several attempts to increase the compensation budget by reclassifying funding from the economic classification: Goods and 

Services and requesting additional funding through the yearly MTEF process has been made. During the year under review 

the original budget allocation for compensation was increased from R174.4 million to R 179.2 million. Additional funding was 

also requested in the 2010 MTEF process and the total budget allocation for compensation for the year starting 1 April 2011 

amounts to R208.8 million.

Towards the end of 2010/11 the department embarked on a process of identifying priority vacant posts in order to ensure 

the optimal utilisation of the additional funding that would become available as form 1 April 2011. The Minister approved the 

identified posts as priority for funding on 18 February 2011.

During the 2010/11 financial year the department had an average vacancy rate of 21% and a turnover rate of 10.8%. On 31 

March 2011 the department had 542 posts on the approved establishment of which 49 were unfunded vacancy 436 were 

filled and 106 were vacant.

4. Utilisation of donor funds

Canadian funds

During the 2010/11 financial an amount of R8.4 million was received from the Canadian Government for the Anti-Corruption 

Capacity Building Programme. The purpose of the project is to strengthen competencies of law enforcement officials and 

anti-corruption practitioners to prevent detect investigate and monitor corruption. The project is also aimed at increasing 

the ability to identify and report on corruption by public officials and increase the ability of public officials to make ethical 

judgements. During the year under review an amount of R4.8 million was spent and the remaining amount of R3.6 million will 

be rolled over to the 2011/12 financial year.
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Deutsche Gesellschaft fur Technische Zummenarbeit (GTZ funding)

During the 2009/10 financial year GTZ committed R593 000.00 to fund the 2009 Annual Innovation Conference and Innovation 

Awards projects. The unspent amount of R72 000 was rolled over to the 2010/11 financial year and the second tranche 

amounting to R193 000.00 was requested during 2010/11. An amount of R265 000.00 was spent on the project.

Another amount of R619 500.00 was also received from GTZ for the training of public servants on the Mainstreaming of HIV 

and Aids during the 2010/11 financial year. This project is aimed at training 400 participants through the University of Pretoria.

5. Trading entities and public entities

State Information Technology Agency (SITA)

The State Information Technology Agency (SITA) is a private company established in terms of the State Information Technology 

Agency Act (1998). The MPSA represents the State as the sole shareholder in SITA and exercises oversight through the 

appointment of the Board of Directors of SITA. The purpose of SITA is to enable government to improve service delivery 

to the public by providing IT information and related services. SITA generates revenue by charging departments and other 

government institutions fees for services rendered.

Public Service Education and Training Authority (PSETA)

The Public Service Education and Training Authority (PSETA) was established by the Minister of Labour in terms of the Skills 

Development Act 1998. In terms of the PSETA Constitution the MPSA appoints the empoyer representatives on the PSETA 

Board. The objective of PSETA is to develop a coordinated framework for providing appropriate and adequate education 

and training services to the public service. During the 2010/11 financial year PSETA was still working under the umbrella of 

the DPSA due to operational difficulties. The initial transfer payment of R19.9 million was reclassified to compensation for 

employees and goods and services.

Centre for Public Service Innovation (CPSI)

The CPSI was established as a Government Component in April 2008 through the Public Service Amendment Act Act 30 

of 2007. CPSI functions as an autonomous entity with its own Accounting Officer reporting directly to the Deputy Minister 

and the MPSA. It however shares essential services such as human resource management supply chain management legal 

services and financial services with the DPSA. The funding of CPSI forms part of Programme 5: Service Delivery Improvement 

throughout Government.

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made 

Transfer payments were effected to the Office of the Public Service Commission (OPSC) and the Public Administration 

Leadership and Management Academy (PALAMA). The amounts respectively calculated to R134 595 000.00 and  

R118 414 000.00. The Public Service Commission is empowered and mandated to oversee and evaluate the functioning of the 

public service with a view to establish good governance and best practice principles. PALAMA is mandated to enhance the 

quality extent and impact of public sector management and leadership development. Both the OPSC and PALAMA are under 
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the Minister for Public Service and Administration and are still classified as departments in terms of the Public Service Act. 

They will remain as such until it has been decided to change their scheduling to a constitutional institution and a public entity.

7. Public private partnerships (PPP)

The DPSA is participating in the RTG 718 PPP transversal contract that was signed on the 9th of November 2006 between the 

National Department of Transport and Phakisaworld Fleet Solutions limited (now called Phakisaworld) for a period of 5 years 

for the provision of fleet vehicles. DPSA signed a Service Level Agreement on 3 June 2009. The DPSA projected an average 

savings amount of R350 936.76 per annum prior to participating in the contract. Subsequently an average annual savings of 

R457 719.82 has been calculated from July 2009 to June 2010 for the 19 vehicles. 

8. Corporate governance arrangements

Risk management

A risk assessment process which includes the identification of fraud-related risks is undertaken annually through which the 

department identifies evaluates and allocates responsibility for managing and controlling the business risks confronting 

the department. Fraud prevention workshops need to be conducted with departmental officials to create awareness and 

familiarise them with the contents of the approved fraud prevention plan and the implications thereof. 

The Audit Committee continues to be an integral component of the risk management process by playing an oversight role 

on the risk management and fraud prevention strategies. The Committee reviews processes and discusses critical issues in 

respect of risk management fraud and corruption during its quarterly meetings.

Internal Audit 

The Department’s Internal Audit directorate operates in accordance with the requirements of the PFMA Treasury Regulations 

and the approved Internal Audit Charter which defines the purpose authority and responsibility of the unit. The audit approach 

and methodologies of the unit are based on the Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditors. 

The Internal Audit Unit focuses mainly on providing assurance and consultancy services to management and the Audit 

Committee on matters pertaining to systems of control risk management and governance in line with the definition of 

Internal Audit as outlined by the Institute of Internal Auditors. The Unit tables quarterly reports before the Department’s Audit 

Committee. 

Audit Committee

The Department has an effective Audit Committee comprised of external members and functions in accordance with the 

terms of reference that are in line with the requirements of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations. The Committee monitors 

compliance with relevant legislation and ensures that appropriate systems of internal control are maintained to protect the 

department’s interests and resources. 

The Audit Committee continuously assesses the performance of the Internal Audit function to determine the level of its 

effectiveness within the Department. The Committee held four quarterly meetings during the reporting period to evaluate 

the reports of Internal Audit and the department’s quarterly performance reports.
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Bid committees

The bid committee is fully functional. Before the commencement of a department bid committee meeting every bid member 

has an opportunity to declare any interest in any bidding tenders which are tabled. 

Code of conduct and conflict of interest

Conflict of interest in the department is minimized by the declaration of interest by senior managers and also in committees 

such as the bid evaluation committees bid adjudication committee audit committee and recruitment and selection panels. 

The department strives to uphold the code of conduct and takes disciplinary actions against employees who violate the latter.

Remunerated work

All employees in terms of section 30 of the Public Service Regulation Act must declare remunerated work outside of the public 

sector and must obtain approval from the relevant Executive Authority. Within the DPSA all such requests for approval are dealt 

with by the Minister of Public Service and Administration as the approval has not been delegated.

Safety health and environmental issues

The department has a functional Occupational Health and Safety committee. The building which houses the Department 

has been issued with an Occupancy Certificate however the department is faced with lifts that get stuck often no proper 

ventilation in the lifts when it does get stuck no intercom system in the lifts to speak to someone pipes in parking often leak 

nasty smell on various floors and cracks in the building which have been brought to the attention of the landlord and the 

Department of Public Works.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued

No activities were discontinued during the period under review.

10. New/proposed activities

The Special Anti-corruption Unit (SACU) was launched on 25 November 2010 by the Minster for Public Service and Administration. 

The SACU’s mandate is to coordinate investigations and disciplinary processes for corruption related misconduct in the public 

service. Government departments are required to have some capacity to prevent detect and resolve corruption however as 

indicated by the DPSA 2010 Minimum Anti-corruption Capacity Requirements Audit the Public Service Commission Hotline 

reports and other government reports not all government departments have the capacity to deal with corruption cases. 

The Auditor General’s report of 2008 has shown that there are a lot of inconsistencies with regard to sanctions imposed for 

corruption related cases. SACU is therefore established to coordinate investigations and disciplinary processes for corruption 

related cases within Phase 1 (2010-2011) of its implementation. A feasibility study is currently being done parallel to Phase 1 

which aims to establish SACU as a government component centralizing investigation and disciplinary corruption related cases. 

This new unit was funded by means of reprioritisation within the baseline allocation for 2010/11 and over the medium term.
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11. Asset management 

The Asset register complies with the minimum requirements for an asset register with all assets procured during the 2009/10 

and 2010/11 financial year recorded and allocated accordingly. The Asset Management policy has been reviewed and 

approved on 14 January 2011. The department is looking forward to the reinstatement of the Asset Management Reform 

by National Treasury for all departments to actively participate therein and this will also be a platform for discussions and 

providing assistance to departments who need advice and assistance within the Asset Management arena.

12. Events after the reporting date

During the 2010/11 financial year the Centre for Public Service Innovation (CPSI) prepared for the hosting of the All Africa 

Public Service Innovation Awards. The CPSI successfully promoted the programme across the continent using regional media 

country visits (meetings with senior government officials ministers and the diplomatic corps) and meetings of regional bodies 

(such as ACOWAS and SADC). A total of 136 entries were received from all regions which were judged by an independent panel 

of adjudicators. The original award ceremony was scheduled for late in 2010 but was postponed on request of Kenya where 

the ceremony would have been held. The selected winners and runners-up will now receive their trophies and certificates at a 

gala ceremony at the Conference of African Ministers for Public/Civil Service to be held on 13 May 2011 in Kenya.

13. Information on predetermined objectives

The Programme Management Office within the Office of the Director-General coordinates the strategic planning operational 

plan and the monitoring and evaluation of the department’s programme performance against set targets. 

The progress on the achievement of the pre-determined objectives is done on a quarterly and annual basis through 

programme performance reports which are submitted to both National Treasury and the department’s Executive Committee 

for the purpose of tracking performance and taking corrective action to improve poor performance of projects and initiatives. 

The programme management office which is responsible for performance information is in the process of developing a 

programme monitoring system which will assist in the improvement of how performance information is recorded managed 

and governed. Detailed progress on pre-determined objectives is provided in this 2010/11 Annual Report under Section 3 on 

Programme Performance.

The 10 pre-determined objectives are stated as part of the department’s Strategic Plan for 2010-2014 has been revised for the 

2011/12 financial year. These objectives are also stated in the Annual Performance Plan for 2010/11.

Budget Committee meetings were convened on a quarterly basis during the year under review to enhance information 

sharing and collaborative decision making by the Accounting Officer and other Executive Committee members. A decision 

has been taken to schedule monthly Budget Committee meetings for the 2011/12 financial year.

14. SCOPA resolutions

The department did not apply for any SCOPA resolutions.
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15. Prior modifications to audit reports

The matters that were reported in 2010 Audit Report and in the Management Letter and the steps which DPSA took to resolve 

the issues are as follows:

 

Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

The Strategic Plan for 2009/10 was not 

provided to Parliament at least 10 days prior 

to the discussion of the department’s budget 

vote as required by Treasury Regulation 5.2.1 

and 5.2.2.

2009/10 Addressed

The Strategic Plan for 2009/10 did not include 

indicators (measure) for the department’s 

programmes as required by Treasury 

Regulation 5.2.2(d).

2009/10 Inputs supplied for the quarterly reports from 

different directorates are being verified and 

thoroughly analysed to ensure that they meet 

the SMART principle (specific measurable 

achievable reasonable and time bound).

The department did not report all the 

predetermined objectives as required by 

section 40(3) of the PFMA and Treasury 

Regulations 5.2.4 and 18.3.1.

2009/10 Workshop will be held between January and 

February 2011 with National Treasury to guide 

EXCO with regards to refining the information 

and indicators required to be submitted for 

performance information purposes on a 

quarterly basis.

The planned and reported performance 

targets were not specific measurable and time 

bound for the selected programmes.

2009/10 Inputs supplied for the quarterly reports from 

different directorates are being verified and 

thoroughly analysed to ensure that they meet 

the SMART principle (specific measurable 

achievable reasonable and time bound).

Changes to the objectives from the approved 

strategic plan for the year under review were 

not disclosed and explained as required 

in terms of the relevant National Treasury 

preparation guide.

2009/10 Workshop will be held between January 

and February 2011 with National Treasury 

(NT) to guide EXCO with regards to refining 

the information and indicators required to 

be submitted for performance information 

purposes on a quarterly basis.

For the selected programmes some of the 

planned and reported indicators were not 

verifiable as it was not possible to adequately 

validate the processes and systems that 

produce the indicator.

2009/10 Actioning of workshop with National Treasury 

will address the finding as well as internal 

controls put in place to monitor projects.

Contrary to the requirements of Paragraph 

3.4.3 of National Treasury Practice Note No. 8 of 

2007/2008 a deviation from the tender process 

for procurement in excess of R1 million was 

not reported to the National Treasury and the 

Auditor General within 10 working days.

2008/09 Control measures have been implemented in 

this regard as to ensure reporting in terms of 

paragraph 3.4.3 of National Treasury Practice 

Note 8 of 2007/2008
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Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

Contrary to the Preferential Procurement Policy 

Framework 2000 (Act No5 of 2000) the 80/20 

preference point system formula was not used 

to calculate the points for price in respect of 

procurement of goods and services with a 

monetary value equal to or above R30 000 and 

up to a monetary value of R500 000.

2009/10 Check lists have been implemented during 

the acquisition phase as to ensure compliance 

with the PPPFA 5 of 2000.

Contrary to section 42A (7) of the Public 

Service Act 1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994) 

the delegations for concluding collective 

bargaining agreements on behalf of the 

Minister were not in writing.

2009/10 MPSA delegated the matter in writing to the 

Acting DG (ADG). The ADG delegated the 

responsibility to the DDG: LRRM

Leadership does not exercise oversight 

responsibility over reporting and compliance 

with laws and regulations and internal control.

2009/10 Reporting of performance information 

is currently done on a quarterly basis to 

management and corrective actions are 

discussed and implemented

Manual or automated controls are not 

appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the 

performance reports.

2009/10 The department is currently developing a 

performance information system internally 

for managing and reporting performance 

information 

Material misstatements in the Financial Statements

Due to inadequate leadership oversight 

irregular expenditure amounting to R3 844 000 

were not identified as such.

2009/10 Special care was taken to identify all irregular 

expenditure during the 2010/11 financial year 

which included an exercise to test the full 

population. The department also implemented 

various control measures to identify and 

prevent irregular expenditure in future

Due to inadequate leadership oversight 

lease commitments of R33 930 000 were not 

identified as such.

2009/10 Lease commitment on buildings facilitated by 

the Department of Public Works are included 

in the Annual Financial Statements for 2010/11

Emphasis of matter

Disclosure note 21 was restated as a result 

of exclusion of the Public Private Partnership 

commitments which were separately disclosed 

as note 29.

2009/10 Public Private Partnership commitments will 

again be included in note 29. No restatement 

would be required

Irregular expenditure to the amount of R4 464 

000 was incurred

2009/10 For the 2010/11 an amount of R10 million 

was incurred as irregular expenditure. The 

department has put measures and controls in 

place to prevent a recurrence of such a high 

amount in future years.
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Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

Other legal and regulatory reporting requirements

Adverse conclusion on predetermined 

objectives due to:

Planned and reported targets were not 

specific in clearly identifying the nature and 

the required level of performance; measurable 

in identifying the required performance; and 

time bound in specifying the time period or 

deadline for delivery;

Changes to planned performance was not 

disclosed in the annual performance report;

Not reporting on all predetermined objectives 

in the annual report;

For the selected programmes 27% of the 

planned and reported indicators were not 

verifiable

2009/10 Action plan addressed in tables above

Non-compliance with applicable legislation

The Strategic Plan for 2009/10 was not 

provided to Parliament at least 10 days prior 

to the discussion of the department’s budget 

vote as required by Treasury Regulation 5.2.1 

and 5.2.2.

2009/10 Action plan addressed in tables above

The Strategic Plan for 2009/10 did not include 

indicators (measure) for the department’s 

programmes as required by Treasury 

Regulation 5.2.2(d).

2009/10 Action plan addressed in tables above 

Contrary to the requirements of Paragraph 

3.4.3 of National Treasury Practice Note No. 8 of 

2007/2008 a deviation from the tender process 

for procurement in excess of R1 million was 

not reported to the National Treasury and the 

Auditor General within 10 working days.

2008/09 Action plan addressed in tables above 

Contrary to paragraph 6.1 of the National 

Treasury Practice Note No. 8 of 2007/2008 a 

tax clearance certificate was not obtained for 

a supplier.

2009/10 SCM Circular was drafted and communicated 

in this regard. The check lists as implemented 

provide additional balance and checks 

regarding compliance.

Contrary to paragraph 16A6.1 of the Treasury 

Regulations some procurement was not done 

by way of bidding of quotations.

2009/10 Communication circulated to all SCM staff 

for clarification purposes. The check lists as 

implemented provide additional balance and 

checks regarding compliance

Contrary to the Preferential Procurement Policy 

Framework 2000 (Act No5 of 2000) the 80/20 

preference point system formula was not used 

to calculate the points for price in respect of 

procurement of goods and services with a 

monetary value equal to or above R30 000 and 

up to a monetary value of R500 000.

2009/10 Action plan addressed in tables above
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Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

Contrary to section 42A (7) of the Public 

Service Act 1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994) 

the delegations for concluding collective 

bargaining agreements on behalf of the 

Minister were not in writing.

2009/10 Action plan addressed in tables above

Information technology systems

Lack of IT Governance framework and business 

continuity plan not implemented

2009/10 Not done. Planned for 2011/ 2012 financial 

year. BCP is a business responsibility not IT. DRP 

depends on BCP implementation which is not 

done yet.

Lack of change management procedures 2009/10 Not documented. Planned for 2011/2012 

financial year. Part of IT governance framework.

Lack of environmental controls in the server 

room

2009/10 Done. Implemented environmental controls. A 

no smoking drinking and eating sign available 

as recommended.

IT steering committee not established 2009/10 Not done. Not feasible as dependent on IT 

governance framework.

Backup tapes are not stored off site 2009/10 Not done. It will be done this financial year. 

Negotiating with the offsite storage location.

Duties in respect of database network and 

security administration not adequately 

segregated

2009/10 Completed. There is only have one server 

administrator now and the administrator is 

the only one who has access to the server. 

Passwords is not shared.

Password controls not adequate 2009/10 Done. 

Significant finding on human resource management and compensation of employees

HR plan for 2008/10 MTEF period not updated 2009/10 HR Plan approved on 31/03/2010 for the 

period 2011

Positions in Finance and Internal Audit vacant 

for more than 12 months

2008/09 CFO post filled in February 2011 and Head of 

Internal Audit moved back to his position

Policy and procedures on managing 

suspensions were not in place

2009/10 Policy on Suspension of employees to be 

developed by 31/02/2011.

Payroll reports were not returned to the CFO 

within 10 days of being certified and/or not all 

pay point certificates had been received on a 

monthly basis

2009/10 All payrolls reports received will be stamped 

with the date of receipt

SMS member did not sign performance 

agreements before 31 July 2009

2009/10 Isolated incident with specific circumstances
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Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

Significant findings on procurement and contract management

Goods and services with a transaction value 

above R10 000 but not exceeding R500 000 

were procured without inviting at least three 

price quotations an the reasons were not 

recorded and approved by the delegated 

official or the deviation was approved even 

though it was possible to obtain at least three 

price quotations

2009/10 Communication circulated to all SCM staff 

for clarification purposes. The check lists as 

implemented provide additional checks and 

balance regarding compliance

Deviation from competitive bidding were 

approved by the accounting officer on the 

basis of it being a case of emergency even 

though immediate action was not necessary 

and sufficient time was available for a bidding 

process and proper planning would have 

prevented such emergency

2009/10 SCM has incorporated a section within the 

draft SCM reviewed policy which will detail 

and outline deviations.

The preference point system as required by the 

PPPFA was not always applied in procurement 

of goods and services above R30 000

2009/10 Communication circulated to all SCM staff 

for clarification purposes. The check lists as 

implemented provide additional checks and 

balance regarding compliance

Bids were awarded to and/or quotations were 

accepted from suppliers who failed to provide 

a tax certificate

2009/10 SCM Circular was drafted and communicated 

in this regard. The check lists as implemented 

provide additional checks and balance 

regarding compliance. 

Other important matters

The post of CFO has not been filled since 2007 2009/10 CFO post filled in February 2011

Non compliance with the SITA Act in procuring 

certain IT related procurement

2009/10 Engaged National Treasury for clarification 

regarding SITA procurement. Clarification 

obtained is currently incorporated in the draft 

reviewed SCM policy.

Continuous monitoring compliance to the SITA 

act when procuring mandatory goods/service 

in terms of the act

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure to the 

value of R17 025.00 were not identified by the 

department

2009/10 New checklists will be developed to attaché 

to all payments that will assist in identifying 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Incorrect formula used in procuring 

consultancy services on the 90/10 preference 

point system

2009/10 National Treasury Instruction note September 

2010 on the amendment guidelines in respect 

of Bids that include functionality as a criterion 

for evaluation has addressed this finding

14 areas of weaknesses were identified in the 

departmental supply chain management 

policy

2009/10 SCM policy has been reviewed extensively and 

the identified weaknesses incorporated

Incorrect classification on professional fees 2009/10 Classification was corrected

Incorrect classification of donations 2009/10 This was an oversight. Classification was 

corrected. Care will be taken to check the 

donor schedules for correctness
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Audit findings in the Audit Report
Financial year in 

which it first arose
Action plan to resolve issue

Simultaneous receipt and issue voucher not 

properly completed

2009/10 Control measures have been implemented in 

this regard and monitored accordingly

No training was provided to staff on the use of 

the fraud prevention plan

2009/10 Training commenced in May 2011

Acting allowance paid for an unfunded post 2009/10 No acting allowances to be paid for acting in 

unfunded posts

Leave not approved by the HOD 2009/10 Training workshops were held with all leave 

administrators

Leave not captured timeously 2009/10 Workshops were held with personnel 

responsible for leave in the various Directorates 

and they were sensitised to the importance 

of the timeous submission of leave forms to 

HR. There has been an improvement. But line 

managers have to ensure this takes place

The approved organisational structure did not 

contain functional information

2009/10 Functional information will be added

Invoices for travel was not signed by the 

responsibility manager

2009/10 Isolated incident

Insufficient information supplied regarding 

employment of vacancies

2009/10 Matter will be attended to more thoroughly in 

future

No specific policy on petty cash procurement 2009/10 Petty cash procurement will be incorporated 

into a draft reviewed SCM Policy. Check NT PN 

5 of 2007/2008

Commitments incorrectly calculated 2009/10 Monthly meeting between SCM and 

Finance implemented to accurately monitor 

commitments

Quarterly payments for the Maponya Mall lease 

were paid in accordance to the invoices from 

the Department of Public Works which was not 

in accordance to the lease agreement

2009/10 Explanation obtained from Department of 

Public Works and lease commitment disclosure 

note amended

16. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury

No exceptions and deviations were requested or received from National Treasury.

17. Approval

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 136 to 208 have been approved by the Accounting Officer.

THEMBA MASEKO

DIRECTOR-GENERAL

31 MAY 2011
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORGENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON VOTE NO. 11: DEPARTMENT 

OF PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Department of Public Service and Administration which 

comprise the appropriation statement the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011 and the statement of 

financial performance statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out on pages 136 to 208.

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with The 

Departmental Financial Reporting Framework prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of the Public 

Finance Management Act of South Africa 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa 

2010 (Act No. 1 of 2010) (DoRA) and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the 

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and section 4 

of the Public Audit Act of South Africa 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and section 40(2) of the PFMA my responsibility 

is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued 

in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management as well as evaluating 

the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
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Opinion

7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of the Department of 

Public service and Administration as at 31 March 2011 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with The Departmental Financial Reporting Framework prescribed by the National Treasury and 

the requirements of the PFMA 

Emphasis of matter 

8. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Restatement of corresponding figures 

9. As disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements current year adjustments to prior year balances the corresponding 

figures for 31 March 2010 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 2011 in the financial statements 

of the Department of Public Service and Administration at and for the year ended 31 March 2010

Additional matter

10.  I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Financial reporting framework 

11. The financial reporting framework prescribed by the National Treasury and applied by the department is a compliance 

framework. Thus my opinion would have reflected that the financial statements had been properly prepared instead 

of fairly presented as required by section 20(2) (a) of the PAA which requires me to express an opinion on the fair 

presentation of the financial statements of the department.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

12. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 

December 2010 I include below my findings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 18 to 100 and 

material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the Department.

Presentation of information

13. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was deficient in respect of the following criteria:
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The following audit findings relate to the above criteria:

Reasons for major variances between planned and actual reported targets were not provided in the report on 

predetermined objectives (Presentation)

14. Adequate explanations for major variances between the planned and the actual reported targets for the programmes 

were not provided as required in terms of the relevant reporting guidance. In total 27% of the reported targets with 

major variances were not explained.

Usefulness of information

15. The reported performance information was deficient in respect of the following criteria;

targets.

The following audit findings relate to the above criteria:

Consistency

Reported objectives are not consistent when compared with the planned objectives (Consistency)

16. The reported objectives indicators and targets are not consistent with the approved strategic plan.

17. The actual achievements with regard to 22% of all planned objectives specified in the strategic plan for the year under 

review were not consistent with the report on predetermined objectives submitted for audit purposes 

Changes to planned targets are not approved (Consistency)

18. Additional targets were reported on as opposed to the approved strategic plan. These additional targets were not 

included in the approved strategic plan

Changes to planned objectives and targets are not disclosed in the report on predetermined objectives (Consistency) 

19. Changes to the objectives and targets of the approved strategic plan for the year under review were not disclosed and 

explained as required in terms of the relevant National Treasury preparation guide.

Measurability:

Planned and reported measures are not well defined (Measurability)

20. For the selected programmes 56% of the planned and reported measures were not clear as unambiguous data 

definitions were not available to allow for data to be collected consistently.
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Planned and reported targets are not specific measurable and time bound (Measurability)

21. For the selected programmes:

performance;

Planned and reported measures are not verifiable (Measurability)

For the selected programmes valid performance management processes and systems that produce actual performance 

against the planned indicators do not exist for 31% of the indicators.

Reliability of information

22. The reported performance information was deficient in respect of the following criteria:

 

23. The following audit finding relate to the above criteria:

The validity of reported performance against targets could not be confirmed as no supporting source information 

was provided (Reliability)

audit evidence could not be provided.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

Annual financial statements performance and annual report

24. The financial statements submitted for audit did not comply with section 40(1) (c) (i) of the PFMA. A material 

misstatement was identified during the audit with regard to irregular expenditure; this was subsequently corrected by 

management. 

Procurement and contract management

25. Certain goods and services with a transaction value of between R10 000 and R500 000 were procured without inviting 

at least three written price quotations from prospective suppliers as per the requirement of Practice Note 8 of 2007-08 

issued in terms of section 76(4)(c) of the PFMA.
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Expenditure management

26. The accounting officer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure as per the 

requirements of section 38(1) (c) (ii) of the PFMA.

27. The accounting officer did not immediately upon the discovery of fruitless and wasteful expenditure report it to the 

relevant treasury as per the requirements of section 38(1) (g) of the PFMA

INTERNAL CONTROL 

28. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 

December 2010 I considered internal control relevant to my audit but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

the effectiveness of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the significant deficiencies that resulted 

in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included 

in this report.

Leadership

29. There was a lack of appropriate leadership intervention and oversight in the development of performance measures 

and targets that are aligned to the National Treasury Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information 

and the presentation of this performance information in accordance with the framework.

30. Management had not implemented corrective actions for identified weaknesses in procurement in a timely manner 

and there was a lack of timely leadership intervention to address management’s inaction in this regard. This has had a 

further impact in that a material adjustment due to identified procurement process contraventions had to be effected 

to the financial statements after submission for audit purposes.

Financial and performance management

31. The department’s processes for managing performance information for the purposes of preparing reliable accurate 

and complete reports is deficient and management has not implemented timely corrective actions to address the 

deficiency. 

Governance

32. The department has not implemented appropriate risk management activities in the information technology 

environment to ensure that regular risk assessments including consideration of risks and fraud prevention are 

conducted and that a risk strategy to address the risks is developed and monitored
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OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations

Investigations in progress

33. An investigation is being conducted by an independent consulting firm to probe the manner in which irregular 

expenditure was incurred. The investigation aims to identify whether disciplinary action is required to be instituted. 

34. The department instructed internal audit to investigate allegations made about possible maladministration by 

employees in respect of the supply chain management process. 

31 July 2011

Pretoria
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-E) to the 

Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note to Financial transactions in assets and liabilities to the 

Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after virement):

4.1 Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

1.  Administration  141 905  135 489  6 416 5%

The under spending of R6.1 million in the current payment economic classification resulted from slow spending in the area 

of Internal IT a delay in the Finalisation of a bid for video conferencing equipment and slow spending on resettlement and 

advertisement cost due to the number of vacancies in the department. As a result from lower than anticipated foreign travelling in 

this programme lesser than anticipated gifts for foreign dignitaries were purchased which resulted in the saving of R28 000 in the 

economic classification transfers and subsidies. A under spending of R213 000 in the payment for capital assets is a direct result of 

lower spending on the purchasing of computer equipment for newly appointed officials in the department.

Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

2.  Human Resource Management and 

Development in Government  47 707  44 633  3 074 6%

A delay in the Finalisation of HR Connect Cohort 3 in the Department of Basic Education resulted that the implementation of 

the projected overlapped to the 2011/12 financial year. A request to roll over funds to the 2011/12 financial year amounting to 

R860 000 was submitted to National Treasury. The postponement of the HIV Counseling and Testing Campaign and a delay in the 

printing of HRDSF books resulted in a under spending in this programme.

Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

 3.  Labour Relations and Compensation 

Management in Government  57 059  49 095  7 964 14%
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The under spending in the current payments economic classification is due to the cancellation of a tender on a performance 

audit on the Health Risk Managers during the 2010/11 financial year. Only one quarterly Labour Relations Forum took place. 

Other requests to host Forums were turned down by the acting DG’s at the time. Therefore the under spending is due to funding 

earmarked for venues accommodation travel and subsistence for these Forums. Lower than anticipating spending on the Urban 

Thusong Centre in the Maponya Mall and the postponement of the official launch of this centre is the main reason for under 

spending in this programme in the current and payment of capital asset economic classifications.

Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

 4. Information and Technology Management 

in Government  41 340  35 120  6 220 15%

The under spending is mainly in the Sub directorate: Information and Communication Technology Infrastructure due to lower 

than anticipating spending for the CabEnet prototype system which was moved to SITA for implementation during November 

2010. Delays in the payments for the COBIT training (R490 000) resulted in a request to roll over funds to the 2010/11 financial year.

Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

 5.  Service Delivery Improvement throughout 

Government  189 137  188 728  409 0%

Under spending is visible across all the sub-programmes as follows: Management R27 000 Batho Pele R128 000 Service Delivery 

Mechanisms R69 000 Service Delivery Facilitation R23 000 Community Development Workers R53 000 Centre for Public Service 

Innovation R57 000 and Public Service Education and Training Authority R50 000.

Programme

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

 R’000 R’000 R’000 %

 6.  Governance for Public Service and 

Administration  181 505  175 100  6 405 4%

The under spending is as a result of lower than anticipated spending on the Special Ant-Corruption Unit amounting to R2.5 

million and International African Affairs R1.3 million. The Deputy Director-General and four senior officials were seconded to the 

Presidency during the first quarter of the financial year which resulted in under spending.
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Programme 

Final 

Appropriation

Actual 

Expenditure Variance

Variance as 

a % of Final 

Appropriation

4.2 Per economic classification: R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees  179 244  175 370  3 874 2%

Goods and services  214 793  189 162  25 631 12%

Interest and rent on land  412  352  60 15%

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces & municipalities  2  2  -  

Departmental agencies & accounts  253 009  253 009  -  

Foreign governments & international 

organisations  596  477  119 20%

Households  2 725  2 715  10 0%

Gifts and donations  31  7  24 77%

Payments for capital assets

Machinery and equipment  7 696  6 933  763 10%

Payments for financial assets  145  138  7 5%
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1  658 653  429 833 

Departmental revenue 2  2 098  1 409 

Aid assistance 3  9 295  11 569 

TOTAL REVENUE  670 046  442 811 

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4  175 370  156 780 

Goods and services 5  189 162  250 012 

Interest and rent on land 6  352  205 

Aid assistance 3  5 686  10 627 

Total current expenditure  370 570  417 624 

Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 8  256 210  1 440 

Total transfers and subsidies  256 210  1 440 

Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible capital assets 9  6 933  9 273 

Software and other intangible assets 12  -  164 

Total expenditure for capital assets  6 933  9 437 

Payments for financial assets 7  138  6 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  633 851  428 507 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  36 195  14 304 

Reconciliation of Net Surplus for the year

Voted Funds  30 488  11 953 

Annual appropriation  30 488  11 953 

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 15  2 098  1 409 

Aid assistance 3  3 609  942 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  36 195  14 304 

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

ASSETS

Current Assets  34 987  20 632 

Cash and cash equivalents  28 561  11 306 

Prepayments and advances  2 189  3 593 

Receivables  4 237  5 733 

TOTAL ASSETS  34 987  20 632 

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities  34 943  20 538 

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund  30 473  11 953 

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue 

Fund  422  953 

Payables  439  6 690 

Aid assistance repayable  3 609  942 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  34 943  20 538 

NET ASSETS  44  94 

Represented by:   

Recoverable revenue  44  94 

TOTAL  44  94 

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Statement of Financial Position
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance  94  52 

Transfers  (50)  42 

Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts)  (106)  (63)

Debts raised  56  105 

Closing balance  44  94 

TOTAL  44  94 

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts  670 031  441 747 

Annual appropriated funds received  658 638  429 833 

Departmental revenue received  2 098  345 

Aid assistance received  9 295  11 569 

Net (increase) in working capital  (3 351)  (9 068)

Surrendered to Revenue Fund  (14 582)  (3 251)

Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor  (942)  (7 445)

Current payments  (370 570)  (417 246)

Payments for financial assets  (138)  (6)

Transfers and subsidies paid  (256 210)  (1 818)

Net cash flow available from operating activities  24 238  2 913 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets  (6 933)  (9 437)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets  -  1 064 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (6 933)  (8 373)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/ (decrease) in net assets  (50)  42 

Net cash flows from financing activities  (50)  42 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  17 255  (5 418)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  11 306  16 724 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  28 561  11 306 

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies which have been applied consistently 

in all material aspects unless otherwise indicated. However where appropriate and meaningful additional information has 

been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999) and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms 

of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act Act 1 of 2010. 

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting except where stated otherwise. The 

modified cash basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items. Under the cash 

basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised when cash is received or paid. 

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the 

department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements. Where necessary figures 

included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is 

presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements. 

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classification of expenditure is included in the 

Appropriation Statement. 

2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against revenue fund (i.e. statutory 

appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments 

made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments become 

effective.

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund. Any amounts owing to the National Revenue 

Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised as payable in the statement of financial position.

Any amount due from the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year is recognised as a receivable in the statement 

of financial position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is subsequently paid 

into the National Revenue Fund unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the National Revenue Fund is recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position. 

No accrual is made for amounts receivable from the last receipt date to the end of the reporting period. These amounts are 

however disclosed in the disclosure note to the annual financial statements.

2.3 Direct Exchequer receipts

All direct exchequer receipts are recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received and is 

subsequently paid into the National Revenue Fund unless stated otherwise. 

Any amount owing to the National Revenue Funds at the end of the financial year is recognised as a payable in the statement 

of financial position.

2.4 Direct Exchequer payments

All direct exchequer payments are recognised in the statement of financial performance when final authorisation for payment 

is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

2.5 Aid assistance

Aid assistance is recognised as revenue when received.

All in-kind aid assistance is disclosed at fair value on the date of receipt in the annexures to the Annual Financial Statements.

The cash payments made during the year relating to aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of 

financial performance when final authorisation for payments is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of funds is recognised as a receivable in the statement of financial 

position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in the 

statement of financial position.

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION

VOTE 11

Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2011
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All CARA funds received must be recorded as revenue when funds are received. The cash payments made during the year 

relating to CARA earmarked projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance when final 

authorisation for payments effected on the system (by no later then 31 March of each year).

Inappropriately expensed amounts using CARA funds are recognised as payables in the statement of financial position. Any 

unutilised amounts are transferred to retained funds as they are not surrendered to the revenue fund.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are expensed in the statement of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is 

effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Other employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the 

financial statements at its face value and are not recognised in the statement of financial performance or position.

Employee costs are capitalised to the cost of a capital project when an employee spends more than 50% of his/her time on the 

project. These payments form part of expenditure for capital assets in the statement of financial performance.

3.1.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions to post employment benefit plans in respect of current employees are expensed in the statement of 

financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each 

year).

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the department. Any potential liabilities are disclosed 

in the financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer department.

Employer contributions made by the department for certain of its ex-employees (such as medical benefits) are classified as 

transfers to households in the statement of financial performance.

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made during the year for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). 

The expense is classified as capital if the goods and/or services were acquired for a capital project or if the total purchase price 

exceeds the capitalisation threshold (currently R5 000). All other expenditures are classified as current.

Rental paid for the use of buildings or other fixed structures is classified as goods and services and not as rent on land.

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION
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3.3 Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the final 

authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item excludes rental for the 

use of buildings or other fixed structures. If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the use of land and the fixed 

structures on it the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.

3.4 Payments for financial assets

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited to the amount of savings and/or 

underspending of appropriated funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is made for 

irrecoverable amounts but an estimate is included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements amounts. 

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.5 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by 

no later than 31 March of each year).

3.6 Unauthorised expenditure

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position until such time 

as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority recovered from the responsible person or written off as 

irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position when the 

unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received. 

Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance on 

the date of approval.

3.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance according to the 

nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement. If the expenditure is recoverable it is 

treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial 

performance.

3.8 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the expenditure is not 

condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable. 

NATIONAL DEPARTMENT PUBLIC SERVICE AND ADMINISTRATION
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4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. 

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand deposits held other short-term 

highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Other financial assets

Other financial assets are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.

4.3 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when the payments are made and are 

derecognised as and when the goods/services are received or the funds are utilised.

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.

4.4 Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash payments made that are recoverable from another 

party (including departmental employees) and are derecognised upon recovery or write-off.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus any accrued interest. 

Amounts that are potentials irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.5 Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the statement of financial position. 

Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the investment may 

be impaired. Any impairment loss is included in the disclosure notes. 

4.6 Loans

Loans are recognised in the statement of financial position when the cash is paid to the beneficiary. Loans that are outstanding 

at year-end are carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest.

Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.
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4.7 Inventory

Inventories that qualify for recognition must be initially reflected at cost. Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for 

nominal consideration their cost shall be their fair value at the date of acquisition.

All inventory items at year-end are reflected using the weighted average cost or FIFO cost formula.

4.8 Capital assets

4.8.1 Movable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded in the asset register on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of 

acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined accurately the movable capital asset is stated at fair value. Where fair value 

cannot be determined the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 are included in the register at R1.

Subsequent recognition

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for capital 

assets” and is capitalised in the asset register of the department on completion of the project. 

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of financial performance.

4.8.2 Immovable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the 

cost cannot be determined accurately the immovable capital asset is stated at R1 unless the fair value for the asset has been 

reliably estimated.

Subsequent recognition

Work-in-progress of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for capital assets”. 

On completion the total cost of the project is included in the asset register of the department that is accountable for the asset.

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of financial performance.
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5. Liabilities

5.1 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities. These payables are carried at cost 

in the statement of financial position.

5.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is possible that economic 

benefits will flow from the department or when an outflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable but cannot 

be measured reliably.

5.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is probable that an inflow of 

economic benefits will flow to the entity.

5.4 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of 

financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5 Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial 

performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes 

to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance or the statement of 

financial position.

5.7 Lease commitments

Finance lease

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position. Finance lease payments are 

recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance and are apportioned between the capital and interest 

portions. The finance lease liability is disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
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Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance. The operating lease 

commitments are disclosed in the discloser notes to the financial statement.

5.8 Impairment and other provisions

The department tests for impairment where there is an indication that a receivable loan or investment may be impaired. An 

assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. An estimate is made for 

doubtful loans and receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end. Impairments on investments are 

calculated as being the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash flows / 

service potential flowing from the instrument.

Provisions are disclosed when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of 

events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue

Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements.

7. Net Assets

7.1 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which are 

recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period. Amounts are recognised in 

the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National Revenue Fund when the 

underlining asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

7.2 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from 

a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National Revenue Fund when recovered or are 

transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

8. Related party transactions

Specific information with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.
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9. Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant is included in the disclosure 

notes.

10. Public private partnerships

A description of the PPP arrangement the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the PPP arrangement 

is included in the disclosure notes.
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1 Annual Appropriation

1.1 Annual Appropriation 2010/11

Programmes

Final 

Appropriation

Actual Funds 

Received

 Funds not 

requested/not 

received 

 Appropriation 

Received 

2009/10 

R’000 R’000  R’000  R’000 

Administration  141 905  141 890  15  125 402 

Human Resource Management and 

Development in Government  47 707  47 707  -  44 526 

Labour Relations And Compensation 

Management in Government  57 059  57 059  -  114 715 

Information and Technology 

Management in Government  41 340  41 340  -  37 262 

Service Delivery Improvement 

throughout Government  189 137  189 137  -  72 440 

Governance For Public Service and 

Administration  181 505  181 505  -  35 488 

Total  658 653  658 638  15  429 833 

Transfers and Subsidy allocation for Programme 1 was not requested as a result of lesser than anticipated foreign travelling and 

consequently gifts to foreign dignitaries were not required. 

Note: The 2009/10 figures were restated to accommodate the Departmental structural changes
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

2 Departmental Revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1  247  223 

Interest dividends and rent on land 2.2  21  8 

Sales of capital assets 2.3  -  1 064 

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.4  1 830  114 

Total revenue collected  2 098  1 409 

Departmental revenue collected  2 098  1 409 

   

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2

Sales of goods and services produced by the department  247  223 

Sales by market establishment  194  178 

Other sales  53  45 

Total  247  223 

   

2.2 Interest dividends and rent on land 2

Interest  21  8 

Total  21  8 

2.3 Sales of capital assets 2

Tangible assets  -  1 064 

Machinery and equipment  -  1 064 

Total  -  1 064 

2.4 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2

Receivables  109  45 

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue  1 721  69 

Total  1 830  114 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

3 Aid Assistance

3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP

Foreign

Opening Balance  942  7 445 

Revenue  9 295  11 569 

Expenditure  (5 686)  (10 627)

 Current   (5 686)  (10 627)

Surrendered to the RDP  (942)  (7 445)

Closing Balance  3 609  942 

3.2 Analysis of balance

Aid assistance repayable  3 609  942 

 RDP  3 609  942 

Closing balance  3 609  942 

   

4 Compensation of Employees

4.1 Salaries and wages

Basic salary  113 905  100 783 

Performance award  2 134  2 001 

Service Based  178  273 

Compensative/circumstantial  3 298  4 966 

Other non-pensionable allowances  37 493  32 122 

Total  157 008  140 145 

4.2 Social Contributions

Employer contributions

Pension  13 542  12 314 

Medical  4 796  4 308 

Bargaining council  24  13 

Total  18 362  16 635 

Total compensation of employees  175 370  156 780 

   

Average number of employees  451  430 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

5 Goods and services

Administrative fees  3 127  3 147 

Advertising  7 015  9 645 

Assets less than R5 000 5.1  992  1 100 

Bursaries (employees)  564  630 

Catering  3 244  1 111 

Communication  4 481  3 842 

Computer services 5.2  33 515  24 324 

Consultants contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3  30 370  101 487 

Entertainment  236  273 

Audit cost – external 5.4  5 273  3 737 

Fleet services  382  - 

Inventory 5.5  4 755  5 531 

Operating leases  27 086  29 191 

Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5.6  11 678  7 124 

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities  5 103  3 968 

Travel and subsistence 5.7  29 104  29 063 

Venues and facilities  8 733  10 994 

Training and staff development  2 920  3 992 

Other operating expenditure 5.8  10 584  10 853 

Total  189 162  250 012 

   

Note: The prior year’s figures for goods and services (other operating expenditure) were amended to reflect the standard 

chart of account classification changed for insurance payments previously accounted for under transfers and subsidies (public 

corporations and private enterprises)

5.1 Assets less than R5 000 5

Tangible assets  991  1 097 

Machinery and equipment  991  1 097 

Intangible assets  1  3 

Total  992  1 100 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

5.2 Computer services 5

SITA computer services  26 520  22 035 

External computer service providers  6 995  2 289 

Total  33 515  24 324 

5.3 Consultants contractors and agency/outsourced services 5

Business and advisory services  24 571  26 630 

Legal costs  165  448 

Contractors  2 991  74 126 

Agency and support/outsourced services  2 643  283 

Total  30 370  101 487 

5.4 Audit cost – external 5

Regularity audits  5 195  3 737 

Investigations  78  - 

Total  5 273  3 737 

5.5 Inventory 5

Learning and teaching support material  48  56 

Food and food supplies  13  - 

Fuel oil and gas  9  - 

Other consumable materials  707  349 

Maintenance material  118  548 

Stationery and printing  3 858  4 547 

Medical supplies  2  31 

Total  4 755  5 531 

5.6 Property payments 5

Municipal services  5 816  2 653 

Property management fees  137  114 

Property maintenance and repairs  215  732 

Other  5 510  3 625 

Total  11 678  7 124 

Note: Expenditure under other property payments include cleaning services pest control security and safeguarding and the 

upgrade and additions to leased buildings.
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

5.7 Travel and subsistence 5

Local  20 695  22 559 

Foreign  8 409  6 504 

Total  29 104  29 063 

5.8 Other operating expenditure 5

Learnerships  41  - 

Professional bodies membership and subscription fees  70  597 

Resettlement costs  25  697 

Other  10 448  9 559 

Total  10 584  10 853 

Note: Expenditure under other operating expenditure include car valet and washing services courier ad delivery services 

learnerships printing and publications services storage of assets vehicle tracing and freight services. The prior year’s figures for 

other operating expenditure were amended to reflect the standard chart of account classification change for insurance payments 

previously accounted for under transfers and subsidies (public corporations and private enterprises)

6 Interest and Rent on Land

Interest paid  352  205 

Total  352  205 

   

7 Payments for financial assets

Debts written off 7.1  138  6 

Total  138  6 

7.1 Debts written off 7

Nature of debts written off

Debts written off relating to irrecoverable debts from former 

employees  93  6 

Unavoidable loss written off with regard to cancellation fees of an 

APRM Provincial Road show  36  - 

Unavoidable loss written off with regard to cancellation fees of an 

ITC Government task team meeting  9  - 

Total  138  6 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

8 Transfers and Subsidies

Provinces and municipalities

Annex 

1A  2  1 

Departmental agencies and accounts

Annex 

1B  253 009  - 

Foreign governments and international organisations

Annex 

1C  477  541 

Households

Annex 

1D  2 715  847 

Gifts donations and sponsorships made

Annex 

1G  7  51 

Total  256 210  1 440 

   

9 Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets  6 933  9 273 

Machinery and equipment 30  6 933  9 273 

   

Software and other intangible 

assets  -  164 

Computer software 31  -  164 

Total  6 933  9 437 

   

9.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2010/11

Voted 

Funds Aid assistance TOTAL

 R’000  R’000  R’000 

Tangible assets  6 933  -  6 933 

Machinery and equipment  6 933  -  6 933 

Total  6 933  -  6 933 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2009/10

Voted 

Funds Aid assistance TOTAL

 R’000  R’000  R’000 

Tangible assets  9 273  -  9 273 

Machinery and equipment  9 273  -  9 273 

 -  -  - 

Software and other intangible assets  164  -  164 

Computer software  164  -  164 

Total  9 437  -  9 437 

  

10 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consolidated Paymaster General Account  28 523  11 268 

Cash on hand  38  38 

Total  28 561  11 306 

11 Prepayments and Advances

Staff advances  51  29 

Travel and subsistence  33  133 

Advances paid to other entities  2 105  3 431 

Total  2 189  3 593 
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2010/11

Less than 

one year

One to 

three years

Older than 

three years Total 2009/10

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

12 Receivables

Claims recoverable

12.1 

Annex 4  1 753  355  169  2 277  4 277 

Staff debt 12.2  156  116  14  286  424 

Other debtors 12.3  1 278  161  235  1 674  1 032 

Total  3 187  632  418  4 237  5 733 

 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

12.1 Claims recoverable 12

National departments  1 095  3 491 

Provincial departments  317  208 

Public entities  865  578 

Total  2 277  4 277 

   

12.2 Staff debt 12

Debt Account  163  283 

Private telephone account  104  140 

Tax debt  19  1 

Total  286  424 

   

12.3 Other debtors 12

Debt Account  1  1 

Salaries: Income Tax  3  33 

Disallowance: damages and losses  588  452 

Disallowance: miscellaneous  163  105 

Claims recoverable: Private enterprises  65  10 

Claims recoverable: Foreign governments and international 

organisations  854  420 

Salaries: Medical Aid  -  11 

Total  1 674  1 032 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

13 Investments

In terms of section 17 (2) of the SITA Amended Act the “Agency” has a 

share capital of R1 represented by one ordinary share with a nominal 

value of R1.

14

Voted Funds to be Surrendered to the Revenue 

Fund

Opening balance  11 953  2 789 

Transfer from statement of financial performance  30 488  11 953 

Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1  (15)  - 

Paid during the year  (11 953)  (2 789)

Closing balance  30 473  11 953 

   

15 Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be 

surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance  953  6 

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance  2 098  1 409 

Paid during the year  (2 629)  (462)

Closing balance  422  953 

   

16 Payables - current

Advances received 16.1  230  6 386 

Clearing accounts 16.2  209  296 

Other payables 16.3  -  8 

Total  439  6 690 

16.1 Advances received 16

African Renaissance Fund  216  6 175 

Department of Social Development  14  - 

Department of Education - KZN  -  211 

Total  230  6 386 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

   

16.2 Clearing accounts 16

Salaries: Income Tax  42  131 

Debt Receivable interest  13  34 

Salaries: Pension fund  -  11 

Disallowance: damages and losses  -  7 

Disallowance: Miscellaneous  -  90 

Private telephone account  15  1 

Advances to National Departments  139  22 

Total  209  296 

   

16.3 Other payables 16

Claims recoverable Foreign governments and international 

organisations  -  1 

Claims recoverable Limpopo  -  7 

Total  -  8 

17 Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance  36 195  14 304 

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities  (11 957)  (11 391)

Decrease in receivables – current  1 496  959 

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances  1 404  (1 971)

Decrease) in payables – current  (6 251)  (8 056)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets  -  (1 064)

Expenditure on capital assets  6 933  9 437 

Surrenders to Revenue Fund  (14 582)  (3 251)

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor  (942)  (7 445)

Voted funds not requested/not received  (15)  - 

Net cash flow generated by operating activities  24 238  2 913 

   

18 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow 

purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account  28 523  11 268 

Cash on hand  38  38 

Total  28 561  11 306 
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These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the 

Annual Financial Statements.

 2010/11  2009/10 

Note  R’000  R’000 

19 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

19.1 Contingent liabilities

Liable to Nature

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees

Annex 

3A  7  51 

Housing loan guarantees Employees

Annex 

3A  56  212 

Other departments (interdepartmental 

unconfirmed balances) Annex 5  -  20 

Total  63  283 

20 Commitments

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted  18 704  30 722 

Approved but not yet contracted  90 986  2 029 

 109 690  32 751 

Capital Expenditure (including transfers)

Approved and contracted  39  1 401 

Approved but not yet contracted  1 230  - 

 1 269  1 401 

Total Commitments  110 959  34 152 

Expiring dates of commitment longer than a year

31 May 2012 - Internet Solutions

30 June 2012 - DNS and Telcomse

09 August 2012 - MvelaSErve

30 September 2012 - ABMS

2012/13 - Travel Agent
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21 Accruals

Listed by economic classification 30 days 30+ days

2010/11

Total

2009/10

Total

Goods and services  7 955  999  8 954  8 627 

Interest and rent on land  25  -  25  24 

Transfers and subsidies  -  -  -  1 004 

Captial assets  772  13  785  168 

Total  8 752  1 012  9 764  9 823 

Listed by programme level Note  R’000  R’000 

Administration  4 671  3 861 

Human Resource Management and Development in 

Government  724  1 529 

Management of Compensation in Government  268  2 145 

Information and Technology Management in Government  1 107  94 

Service delivery Improvement throughout Government  1 860  1 029 

Governance for Public Service and Administration  1 134  1 165 

Total  9 764  9 823 

  

Confirmed balances with departments Annex 5  328  249 

Confirmed balances with other government 

entities Annex 5  268  - 

Total  596  249 

Note: The 2009/10 figures were restated to accommodate the Departmental structural changes

22 Employee benefits

Leave entitlement  4 809  4 784 

Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque)  4 110  3 896 

Performance awards  2 631  2 352 

Capped leave commitments  6 100  6 082 

Total  17 650  17 114 
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23 Lease commitments

23.1 Operating leases expenditure

2010/11 Land

Buildings 

and other 

fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Not later than 1 year  -  14 708  983  15 691 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -  11 385  135  11 520 

Later than five years  -  2 927  -  2 927 

Total lease commitments  -  29 020  1 118  30 138 

2009/10 Land

Buildings 

and other 

fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Not later than 1 year  73  16 741  67  16 881 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -  19 595  -  19 595 

Total lease commitments  73  36 336  67  36 476 

23.2 Finance leases expenditure **

2010/11 Land

Buildings 

and other 

fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Not later than 1 year  -  -  2 116  2 116 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -  -  1 171  1 171 

Total lease commitments  -  -  3 287  3 287 

LESS: finance costs  -  -  114  114 

Total present value of lease liabilities  -  -  3 173  3 173 

2009/10 Land

Buildings 

and other 

fixed 

structures

Machinery 

and 

equipment Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Not later than 1 year  -  -  2 138  2 138 

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -  -  2 202  2 202 

Total lease commitments  -  -  4 340  4 340 

LESS: finance costs  -  -  253  253 

Total present value of lease liabilities  -  -  4 087  4 087 
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Note
 2010/11

R’000 

2009/10

 R’000 

Irregular expenditure

24.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance  9 567  5 125 

Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to prior year  1 344  193 

Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to current year  10 897  4 271 

Less: Amounts condoned  -  (22)

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation  21 808  9 567 

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year  10 897  4 271 

Prior years  10 911  5 296 

Total  21 808  9 567 

24.2 Details of irregular expenditure - current year 2010/11

Incident Year Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Failure to 

comply with the 

departmental 

Financial Delegation

Prior Year Payments to a service provider for the supply of newspapers 

were declared irregular as the departmental delegation 

limits were exceeded during the procurement process. The 

cases has been referred to the Internal audit section for 

further investigation and recommendations on possible 

disciplinary actions

 564 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures

Prior Year Carpet cleaning contract payments were made but the 

procurement processes were not correctly followed

 780 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures

Current Year 30 invoices were declared irregular as no deviation approval 

for not making use of three quotations. The cases has been 

referred to the Internal audit section for further investigation 

and recommendations on possible disciplinary action

 961 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures:

Current Year 21 invoices were declared irregular as the services were 

rendered before the order date. The cases has been referred 

to the Internal audit section for further investigation and 

recommendations on possible disciplinary action

 1 815 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures:

Current Year 79 invoices were declared irregular as no procurement 

process were followed in the procurement of these 

goods and services. The cases has been referred to 

the Internal audit section for further investigation and 

recommendations on possible disciplinary 

 4 726 

Failure to 

comply with the 

departmental policy 

on catering and 

entertainment

Current Year 7 invoices were declared irregular as the departmental 

limit for catering was exceeded without prior approval. The 

cases has been referred to the Internal audit section for 

further investigation and recommendations on possible 

disciplinary action

 28 
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24.2 Details of irregular expenditure - current year 2010/11

Incident Year Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 

the procurement 

procedures and the 

departmental policy 

on catering and 

entertainment

Current Year 81 invoices were declared irregular as the departmental 

limit for catering was exceeded without prior approval 

and no procurement process were followed. The cases 

has been referred to the Internal audit section for further 

investigation and recommendation

 187 

Failure to 

comply with the 

departmental 

Financial Delegation

Current Year 31 invoices were declared irregular as the departmental 

delegation limits were exceeded. The cases has been 

referred to the Internal audit section for further investigation 

and recommendations on possible disciplinary action

 1 157 

Failure to comply 

with the Preferential 

Procurement Policy 

Framework Act

Current Year 1 invoice was declared irregular as the 80/20 principle 

was not applied in the procurement of the goods. The 

case has been referred to the Internal audit section for 

further investigation and recommendations on possible 

disciplinary action

 39 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures:

Current Year 58 invoices were declared irregular as the relevant 

contracts expired but the services were still rendered. The 

cases has been referred to the Internal audit section for 

further investigation and recommendations on possible 

disciplinary action

 522 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures:

Current Year 13 invoices were declared irregular as these were paid 

against orders that have expired. The cases has been 

referred to the Internal audit section for further investigation 

and recommendations on possible disciplinary action

 76 

Failure to comply 

with Treasury 

Regulations 8.2 and 

the procurement 

procedures:

Current Year 27 invoices were declared irregular as proper procurement 

processes were not followed

 1 386 

Total  12 241 
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 2010/11  2009/10 

25 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure R’000 R’000

25.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance  52  44 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year  311  8 

Less: Amounts condoned  (8)  - 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement  355  52 

25.2 Analysis of awaiting condonement per economic classification

Current  355  8 

Total  355  8 

25.3 Analysis of Current Year’s Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  2010/11 

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings R’000

Cancellation of a tender A departmental bid 006/2010 for the appointment of 

an audit company to conduct a performance audit on 

the Health Risk Managers had to be cancelled due to 

incorrect published evaluation criteria. The case is being 

investigated by the Head of Internal Audit.

 9 

Lost of a deposit for a building 

lease agreement

Two employees were charged by the PSETA management 

for not vacating a leased building in Centurion and the 

handing over the office keys to the building landlord 

within the prescribed time frame. A disciplinary hearing 

has been conducted in January 2011 and the outcome 

report of the hearing is still outstanding from the PSETA 

Board.

 302 

Total  311 
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26 Related party transactions

The Department has a related party relationship with all the public sector entities falling within the portfolio of the Minister 

for Public Service and Administration which includes the Public Service Commission Public Administration Leadership and 

Management Academy State Information Technology Agency Government Employees Medical Scheme and Public Sector 

Education Training Authority. During the previous financial year the only related party transactions with these entities which 

were not at arm’s length were entered into with the Public Service Commission.

* DPSA contribution towards the launch of the first General Assembly of the 

Association of African Public Services Commissions.  - 

100

* Farewell of the Chairperson of the Public Service Commission.  - 238

Total  - 338

 2010/11  2009/10 

No. of  R’000  R’000 

27 Key management personnel Individuals

Political office bearers 3  3 356  2 909 

Level 15 to 16 14  11 904  9 049 

Level 14 40  25 760  24 018 

Total  41 020  35 976 

28 Public Private Partnership

Contract fee paid  5 531  6 934 

Indexed component  5 531  6 934 

Analysis of indexed component  5 531  6 934 

Goods and Services(excluding lease payments)  3 549  4 360 

Operating leases  1 613  1 979 

Interest  369  595 

Transversal PPP (RTG718PPP) entered into by the department is for the provision of fleet vehicles. Annual CPI increase 

which would include possible insurance premium adjustments will affect the amount over the duration of the contract. The 

department has the right to make use of the vehicles provided for the duration of the contract. All risk remains with the Private 

Party. Contract renewal and termination will be addressed by the NDoT as the custodian of the contract in conjunction with 

National Treasury. 

Annual CPI increase which would include possible insurance premium adjustments will affect the amount over the duration of 

the contract.

29 Impairment and other provisions

Debtors  64  20 

Other  105  68 

Total  169  88 
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30 Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Opening 

balance

Current year 

adjustments 

to prior year 

balances Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT  37 148  528  4 702  508  41 870 

 Transport assets  1 501  -  1 007  -  2 508 

 Computer equipment  23 717  43  2 034  455  25 339 

 Furniture and office equipment  7 126  143  1 833  19  9 083 

 Other machinery and equipment  4 804  342  (172)  34  4 940 

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS  37 148  528  4 702  508  41 870 

30.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Cash Non-cash

(Capital 

work-in-

progress 

current 

costs and 

finance 

lease 

payments)

Received 

current not 

paid (Paid 

current year 

received 

prior year Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT  6 933  -  (2 361)  130  4 702 

Transport assets  1 369  -  (362)  -  1 007 

Computer equipment  1 949  -  -  85  2 034 

Furniture and office equipment  2 860  -  (1 005)  (22)  1 833 

Other machinery and equipment  755  -  (994)  67  (172)

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS  6 933  -  (2 361)  130  4 702 
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30.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Sold for cash

Transfer out 

or destroyed 

or scrapped

Total 

disposals

Cash 

received 

Actual

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT  -  508  508  - 

Transport assets  -  -  -  - 

Computer equipment  -  455  455  - 

Furniture and office equipment  -  19  19  - 

Other machinery and equipment  -  34  34  - 

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE 

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS  -  508  508  - 

30.3 Movement for 2009/10

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Opening 

balance Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT  32 723  8 535  4 110  37 148 

Transport assets  1 014  2 251  1 764  1 501 

Computer equipment  21 792  2 357  432  23 717 

Furniture and office equipment  7 018  1 877  1 769  7 126 

Other machinery and equipment  2 899  2 050  145  4 804 

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 

CAPITAL ASSETS  32 723  8 535  4 110  37 148 
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30.4 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Intangible 

assets

Heritage 

assets

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Biological 

assets Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Opening balance  35  -  11 396  -  11 431 

Curr Year Adjustments to Prior Yr 

Balances  -  -  (4)  -  (4)

Additions  2  -  1 262  -  1 264 

Disposals  -  -  36  -  36 

 TOTAL MINOR ASSETS  37  -  12 618  -  12 655 

Intangible 

assets

Heritage 

assets

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Biological 

assets Total

Number of minor assets at cost  21  -  9 700  -  9 721 

 TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS  21  -  9 700  -  9 721 

MINOR ASSETS OF THE DEPARTMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2010

Intangible 

assets

Heritage 

assets

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Biological 

assets Total

 R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 

Minor Assets  35  -  11 396  -  11 431 

 TOTAL  35  -  11 396  -  11 431 

Intangible 

assets

Heritage 

assets

Machinery 

and 

equipment

Biological 

assets Total

Number of minor assets at cost  20  -  9 051  -  9 071 

 TOTAL  20  -  9 051  -  9 071 
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31  Intangible Capital Assets 

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Opening 

balance

Current year 

adjustments 

to prior year 

balances Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

COMPUTER SOFTWARE  787  -  -  -  787 

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 

ASSETS  787  -  -  -  787 

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Opening 

balance Additions Disposals

Closing 

balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE  623  164  -  787 

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 

ASSETS  623  164  -  787 
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Section 5: Human Resources Management
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TABLE 3.1 - Employment and Vacancies by Programme at end of period 31/03/2011

Programme

Number of 

Posts

Number of 

Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 

Posts Filled 

Additional 

to the 

Establishment

Programme 1: 

administration Permanent 251 206 17.9 14

Programme 2:

human resource management & development 

Permanent 54 49 9.3 2

Programme 3: 

management of compensation Permanent 37 26 29.7 1

Programme 4: 

information technology and management 

Permanent 26 16 38.5 0

Programme 5: 

service delivery improvement Permanent 130 107 17.7 24

Programme 6: 

governance Permanent 63 47 25.4 11

TOTAL 561 451 19.6 52

     

TABLE 3.2 - Employment and Vacancies by Salary Band at end of period

 

Salary Band

Number of 

Posts

Number of 

Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 

Posts Filled 

Additional 

to the 

Establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Permanent 22 21 4.5 3

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Permanent 62 57 8.1 14

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) Permanent 145 119 17.9 18

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) Permanent 204 155 24 12

Senior management (Levels 13-16) Permanent 128 99 22.7 5

TOTAL 561 451 19.6 52
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TABLE 3.3 - Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation at end of period

Critical Occupations

Number of 

Posts

Number of 

Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 

Posts Filled 

Additional 

to the 

Establishment

Financial management related 27 24 11.1 2

Human Resources Related 186 161 13.4 6

Information Technology Related 12 8 33.3 0

Senior managers Permanent 128 99 22.7 7

TOTAL 353 292 17.3 15
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TABLE 4.1 - Job Evaluation

Salary Band
Number of 

Posts

Number 

of Jobs 

Evaluated

% of Posts 

Evaluated

Number 

of Posts 

Upgraded

% of 

Upgraded 

Posts 

Evaluated

Number 

of Posts 

Downgraded

% of 

Downgraded 

Posts 

Evaluated

Lower skilled 

(Levels 1-2) 22 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 62 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 

production 

(Levels 6-8) 145 2 1.4 2 100 0 0

Highly skilled 

supervision

(Levels 9-12) 204 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band A 78 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band B 36 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band C 11 1 9.1 1 100 0 0

Senior Management 

Service Band D 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 561 3 0.5 3 100 0 0

TABLE 4.2 - Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 2 0 0 1 3

Total 2 0 1 3

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 4.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by Job Evaluation [i.t.o PSR 1.V.C.3]

Occupation

Number of 

Employees

Job Evaluation 

Level

Remuneration 

Level

Reason for 

Deviation

No of 

Employees in 

Dept

Chief Director 1 14 14 Retention 1

Director 1 13 13 Retention 1

Deputy Director 1 11 11 Retention 1

Office Manager 1 9 9 Upgrade 1

Health & Safety Officer 1 9 9 Upgrade 1

Facility Manager 1 9 9 Upgrade 1

Personal Assistant 1 7 9 Retention 1

Total 7    7

Percentage of Total Employment 0.10%     
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TABLE 4.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation [i.t.o. PSR 1.V.C.3]

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 3 1 0 0 4

Male 2 0 0 1 3

Total 5 1 0 1 7

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 5.1 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band Permanent

 

Salary Band

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period 

(April 2010) Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Permanent 16 6 6 37.5

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Permanent 47 15 9 19.1

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) Permanent 120 10 14 11.7

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) Permanent 158 14 20 12.7

Senior Management Service (levels 13-16) 94 12 11 11.7

TOTAL 435 57 60 13.8

TABLE 5.2 - Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation 

Occupation

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period 

(April 2010) Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

HR related Permanent in Branches (HR HRMD LRRM) 151 6 4 2.6

IT related Permanent (ITM PSICTM) 6 0 1 16.7

Senior managers Permanent 93 10 2 2.2

Finance related (Fin CFO) 15 6 2 13.3

TOTAL 265 22 9 3.4
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TABLE 5.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type Number

Percentage 

of Total 

Resignations

Percentage 

of Total 

Employment Total

Death Permanent 2 8 0.5 435

Resignation Permanent 18 56 3.3 435

Expiry of contract Permanent 22 88 5.2 435

Transfers Permanent 17 68 4 435

Retirement Permanent 1 4 0.2 435

TOTAL 60 224 13.2 435

 

Resignations as % of Employment 13.3

TABLE 5.4 - Granting of Employee Initiated Severance Packages

Category

No of 

applications 

received

No of 

applications 

referred to the 

MPSA

No of 

applications 

supported by 

MPSA

No of 

Packages 

approved by 

department

Lower Skilled (Salary Level 1-2)     

Skilled (Salary Level 3-5)     

Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 6-8)     

Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 9-12)     

Senior Management (Salary Level 13 and higher)     

Total 0 0 0 0

TABLE 5.5 - Promotions by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period 

(April 2010)

Promotions 

to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 

Promotions 

as a % of 

Employment

Progressions 

to another 

Notch within 

Salary Level

Notch 

progressions 

as a % of 

Employment

Administrative related 17 4 23.5 5 29.4

Finance and economics related 14 1 7.1 9 64.3

Human resources related 80 11 13.8 48 60

Senior managers 84 7 8.3 55 65.5

TOTAL 195 23 11.8 117 60
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TABLE 5.6 - Promotions by Salary Band

Salary Band

Employment 

at Beginning 

of Period 

(April 2010)

Promotions 

to another 

Salary Level

Salary Level 

Promotions 

as a % of 

Employment

Progressions 

to another 

Notch within 

Salary Level

Notch 

progressions 

as a % of 

Employment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) Permanent 16 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) Permanent 47 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 

Permanent 120 5 4.2 0 0

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 

Permanent 158 3 1.9 1 0.6

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 

Permanent 94 1 1 2 2.1

TOTAL 435 9 2.1 3 0.7
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TABLE 10.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk 

of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Cannot really tell but from last HCT campaign 2.6% that tested 

positive was male Continue with the awareness and preventative campaigns

TABLE 10.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes [tick Yes/No and provide required information]

Question Yes No Details if yes

1.  Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement 

the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 

Regulations 2001? If so provide her/his name and position. 

x  

The Unit is headed by an SMS member 

Ms BJ Hendricks as contained in PSR 

Part VI E.

2.  Does the department have a dedicated unit or have you designated 

specific staff members to promote health and well being of your 

employees? If so indicate the number of employees who are involved in 

this task and the annual budget that is available for this purpose. 

x  

There is a dedicated health and 

wellness unit with 2 employees and a 

budget that addresses organisational 

and individual wellness.

3.  Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health 

Promotion Programme for your employees? If so indicate the key 

elements/services of the programme. 

 x 

The Dept has a comprehensive 

Health and Wellness programme for 

all employees The key elements are: 

Wellness management Occupational 

Health and Safety and Disease 

Management.

4.  Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in 

Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations 2001? If so 

please provide the names of the members of the committee and the 

stakeholder(s) that they represent. 

x  
The committee consists of senior 

manager representation. They are 

5.  Has the department reviewed the employment policies and practices 

of your department to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 

against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so list the 

employment policies/practices so reviewed. 

x  

The policies aligned are: Sexual 

harassment recruitment and selection 

overtime human resource development 

internship induction and orientation.

6.  Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive 

employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If 

so list the key elements of these measures. 

x  

The wellness policies and other DPSA 

policies clearly outlines the principles 

of non-discrimination. HIV related 

cases are treated with confidentiality. 

Disclosure is per written consent.

7.  Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary 

Counselling and Testing? If so list the results that you have achieved. 
x  

The plans are afoot for the rollout as 

outlined in the National Strategic Plan 

on HIV & AIDS management

8.  Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & 

evaluate the impact of your health promotion programme? If so list 

these measures/indicators. 

x  

 Each wellness pillar has monitoring 

and evaluation tool that guides the 

implementation process.
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TABLE 11.1 - Collective Agreements

Subject Matter Date

xxx xxx 

xxx xxx 

TABLE 11.2 - Misconduct and Discipline Hearings Finalised

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number

Percentage of 

Total Total

TOTAL 0 0 0

TABLE 11.3 - Types of Misconduct Addressed and Disciplinary Hearings

Type of misconduct Number

Percentage of 

Total Total

Insubordination 2 0.04 2

Leaving workstation without permission 1 0.01 1

Overspending 2 0.04 2

TOTAL 5 0.09 5

Number of grievances addressed Number

Percentage of 

Total Total

resignation during process 1 0.01 1

Transfer during process 1 0.01 1

Resolved 3 0.05 3

TABLE 11.5 - Disputes Lodged

   

Number of disputes addressed Number % of total Total

Upheld 0 0 0

Dismissed 0 0 0

Lodged 2 0.02 2

withdrawn 2 0.02 0

Total 0 0 0
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TABLE 11.6 - Strike Actions

Strike Actions _

Total number of person working days lost 37

Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 33 859.66

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 33 859.66

TABLE 11.7 - Precautionary Suspensions

Precautionary Suspensions _

Number of people suspended 0

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost (R’000) of suspensions 0
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14.  TABLE ON THE UTILISATION OF EXTERNAL CONSULTANTS

14.1 Report on consultants using appropriated funds for the period April 2010 to March 2011

PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
1 100 233 500

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
1 80 125 000

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
1 100 288 500

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
1 100 661 500

Assessing the questionnaires relating to the Job 

Evaluation system
1 5 150 316

Assisting PSETA to meet SAQA requirements 1 24 153 900

Audit Committee member for DPSA 1 12 106 021

Audit Committee member for DPSA 1 2 12 564

Audit Committee member for DPSA 1 4 12 564

Audit Committee member for DPSA 1 13 79 530

Audit Committee member for DPSA 1 14 94 208

Audit Committee member for PSETA 1 5 9 600

Audit Committee member for PSETA 1 3 6 400

Audit Committee member for PSETA 1 4 6 400

Board member for PSETA 1 3 9 600

Board member for PSETA 1 19 58 200

Board member for PSETA 1 4 12 800

Board member for PSETA 1 6 16 000

Board member for PSETA 1 10 30 400

Board member for PSETA 1 4 11 200

Board member for PSETA 1 8 41 044

Board member for PSETA 1 14 38 400

Board member for PSETA 1 8 16 000

Board member for PSETA 1 7 38 900

Board member for PSETA 1 10 20 800

Board member for PSETA 1 11 22 400

Board member for PSETA 1 2 6 400

Board member for PSETA 1 4 26 000
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Board member for PSETA 1 18 40 000

Board member for PSETA 1 2 6 400

Competency Assessments 2 2 9 598

Competency assessments 1 1 4 799

Competency Assessments 2 1 28 500

Competency assessments 1 1 19 196

Competency Assessments 1 1 14 397

Competency Assessments 1 1 4 799

Competency Assessments 1 9 598

Competency assessments 1 3 14 397

Competency Assessments 1 14 397

Conceptualising editing proof-reading and layout design 

and typesetting of the 3rd edition of “Ideas that Work”
1 7 42 425

Conducting a survey on general staff remuneration and 

benefits
1 61 37 770

Conducting research and developing a think-piece on 

Migration and Xenophobia
1 6 20 000

Consulting fees for actuaries services for health risk 

services
1 941 355

Desk tops evaluations of courses for PSETA 2 21 36 666

Desktops evaluations of TQM systems 1 2 14 000

Developing a functional analysis framework and toolkits 

for government
2 261 196 656

Developing a learning framework 1 20 110 000

Developing an impact research and assessment 

framework on quality assurance activities
1 42 296 400

Developing the Sector Skills Plan (SSP) for 2011-2016 for 

PSETA
2 70 852 845

Developing the SMS competency battery 2 20 132 863

Drafting of a Quality Council for Trades and Occupations 

(QCTO) alignment strategy document
1 11 75 240

Drafting of concept business strategy for the anti-

corruption framework
1 25 285 260

Drafting of the ICT Security Governance Framework 1 1 109 914

Editing services on the Employment Equity Guideline 1 1 3 283

Editing proof-reading the 2009 Annual Public Service 

Gender Indaba Report
1 1 8 892
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Evaluating and consulting learning programmes 2 5 61 988

Evaluating assessors for accreditation for learner 

programs
1 33 98 941

Evaluating learning material for the skills development 

program
2 89 93 128

Evaluating learning programmes 1 7 35 910

Evaluating learning programs 2 8 62 984

Evaluating the Quality Management System courses 1 29 570

External moderation on courses for the Diplomatic 

Academy
1 6 69 208

Facilitating the Business Plan Workshop for PSETA 1 17 108 000

French and Portuguese translations for the All African 

Public Sector Innovation Awards conference
1 1 39 235

Geographic Information System project 1 2 37 444

HR Connect Project 5 261 11 449 590

Internal auditing services for DPSA 2 20 82 820

Interpretation services for the APRM road show 1 2 10 000

Interpreting documents from English to Portuguese for 

the All Africa Public Sector Innovation Awards ceremony
1 1 11 275

Interpreting French anti-corruption documents into 

English
1 1 5 472

Interpreting services for a public function in the 

Democratic Republic of the Congo
1 3 16 949

Interpreting services for a SADC meeting 1 1 9 000

Interpreting services for an APRM road show 1 2 10 000

Interpreting services rendered for the consultative 

workshop
1 1 5 174

Occupational Health & Safety Services for the Urban 

Thusong centre in the Mopanya Mall
1 60 25 800

Outsourcing CFO function for PSETA 2 20 301 598

Project implementation of a MIS system for PSETA 1 20 277 020

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
1 180 984 960

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
1 20 92 800

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
1 140 649 600
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Providing strategic support to the Minister 1 221 1 256 418

Qualification verification services 1 16 1 450

Quality Assurance Activities for PSETA 1 1 128 000

Quality Assurance Activities for PSETA 2 1 128 000

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs 1 1 7 000

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs 1 1 19 800

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs 1 3 15 832

Refining the IT Strategy Plan for the Public Sector 

Information and Communication Technology 

Management

1 395 154

Researching and writing a paper on the “Unblocking 

Service Delivery”
1 1 40 000

Sign language services during an APRM road show 1 1 2 500

Sign language services during an APRM road show 1 1 2 500

Sign language services during an APRM road show 1 1 3 070

SPS : Change Readiness assessment 1 89 1 962 188

Transcribing of documents for a departmental strategic 

session
1 2 10 534

Transcribing services for a departmental strategic session 1 2 22 321

Transcribing services for a Government and 

Administration Cluster meeting
1 1 2 437

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
1 1 4 503

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
1 1 2 120

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
1 1 4 503

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
1 1 3 420

Translating APRM’s National Program of Action into 

French
1 1 80 270

Translating services between French and English in the 

Democratic Republic of Congo
1 1 22 139

Translating services for the AAPAM conference 1 4 42 060

Translating services from English to French and 

Portuguese for a SADC workshop
1 2 1 187

Translating the “Social Cluster Booklet” into official 

languages
1 40 95 740
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Translating the APRM Annual Report into French 1 1 11 297

Translating the booklet “ Know Your Service Rights” into 

official languages
1 1 20 631

Translating editing and proofreading documents 

from English to Arabic for the All Africa Public Sector 

Innovation Awards

1 1 49 590

Translating editing and proof-reading Sepedi documents 

for the All African Public Sector Innovation Awards 

conference

1 1 3 238

Translation of a French anti-corruption document into 

English
1 8 21 341

Verifying services of competency achievements of 

learners in the Western Cape
1 2 14 000

Wage Settlement Survey 2 261 10 250

TOTAL FOR CONSULTANTS 129 2 724 24 569 756
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONTRACTORS 

Band performance for an APRM function 4 1 40 000

Band performance for the APRM road show 1 1 15 000

Band performance for the Budget Vote 6 1 12 000

Cad drawings for the Urban Thusong Centre in the 

Maponya Mall
1 46 128 775

Cladding of walls for the Urban Thusong Centre in the 

Maponya Mall
1 1 63 243

Decorating a venue hall for Innovation Awards 

ceremony
1 1 40 000

Departmental sport activities 1 1 200

Designing of technical and layout designs for the Urban 

Thusong centre in the Maponya Mall
9 239 245 009

Fitting of a DVD system into Minister’s vehicle 1 1 14 818

Framed photos of Ministry 1 1 6 240

Framing of Ministry photos 1 1 12 040

Framing of Ministry photos 1 1 7 324

Health Risk Managers 1 261 77 516

Live band entertainment for the Innovation Awards 

ceremony
4 1 28 750

Live performances of Diski dancers for APRM road show 5 1 12 500

Maintenance of buildings and equipment 1 48 938 920

Motivational speaker 1 1 20 520

Performance fees for the AAPAM conference 1 1 5 000

Photography service for the launch of the localised 

Service Delivery Improvement Forum
1 1 8 500

Printing graphic designs on carrier bags for the 

Innovation Awards ceremony
1 1 6 973

Programme Director for the Innovation Awards 

ceremony
1 1 20 000

Providing a sound technician for a media briefing of the 

Minister
1 2 1 243

Providing sound system services for the Innovation 

Awards ceremony
1 1 12 000

Providing a PA system for an Imbizo in Durban 2 2 3 000

Providing audio equipment for an Imbizo “Reaching to 

each other”
1 1 10 700

Providing audio-visual systems for a GALA dinner for the 

Innovation Awards ceremony
7 1 372 780
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PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONTRACTORS 

Providing audio-visual systems for the Launch of IFMS 1 2 4 218

Providing audio-visual systems for the Public Sector 

Innovation Awards
1 1 3 300

Providing DJ services for the Innovation Awards 

ceremony
4 1 23 500

Providing flower services 1 48 73 872

Providing legal services to the department 1 261 164 534

Providing sound system services for an Imbizo in 

Limpopo
1 1 30 780

Providing sound system services for Diski Friday’s 1 1 600

Providing sound system services for Diski Friday’s 1 1 600

Recording and producing a pre-recorded video for 

Education Training Qualifications Authority program
1 1 193 697

School performance for APRM road show 1 1 10 500

Steel drums and Marimba band performance for the 

AAPAM conference
3 1 10 000

Teambuilding 1 1 2 380

Teambuilding activities for the Monitoring and 

Evaluation section
1 1 38 241

Teambuilding activities for the Public Sector Information 

and Communication Technology branch
1 1 3 072

Teambuilding activities for the Service Delivery and 

Organisational Transformation
1 1 7 450

Traditional dancers for an Imbizo in Venda 5 2 5 600

Traditional dancers for the Rustenburg Imbizo 5 1 10 000

Transporting a PA system used during the launch of IFMS 1 1 300

Transporting Minister’s vehicle to Cape Town 1 1 219

Transporting Minister’s vehicle to Cape Town 1 2 3 135

Video production of the launch of the Special Anti-

Corruption Unit
1 1 465 509

TOTAL FOR CONTRACTORS 90 949 3 154 558

TOTAL FOR CONSULTANTS AND CONTRACTORS 219 3673  27 724 314 
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14.2 Report on consultants using appropriated funds for the period April 2010 to March  

 2011

PROJECT TITLE

% OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGEMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF 

WORKERS FROM 

HDI’S THAT WORKED 

ON THE PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
100% 100% 1

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
100% 100% 1

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
100% 100% 1

Advisory services for the PSETA organisational structure 

and streamlining its service delivery activities
100% 100% 1

Assessing the questionnaires relating to the Job 

Evaluation system
- - -

Assisting PSETA to meet SAQA requirements 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for DPSA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for DPSA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for DPSA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for DPSA - - -

Audit Committee member for DPSA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Audit Committee member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1
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PROJECT TITLE

% OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGEMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF 

WORKERS FROM 

HDI’S THAT WORKED 

ON THE PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Board member for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Competency Assessments - - -

Competency assessments - - -

Competency Assessments 51% 51% -

Competency assessments 90% - -

Competency Assessments 100% 100% -

Competency Assessments 100% 100% 1

Competency Assessments 100% 100% 1

Competency assessments 100% 100% 1

Competency Assessments 25% - -

Conceptualising editing proof-reading and layout design 

and typesetting of the 3rd edition of “Ideas that Work”
- - -

Conducting a survey on general staff remuneration and 

benefits
- - -

Conducting research and developing a think-piece on 

Migration and Xenophobia
100% 100% 1

Consulting fees for actuaries services for health risk 

services
51% 51% -

Desk tops evaluations of courses for PSETA 100% 100% -

Desktops evaluations of TQM systems - - -

Developing a functional analysis framework and toolkits 

for government
- - -

Developing a learning framework 100% 100% 1

Developing an impact research and assessment 

framework on quality assurance activities
100% 100% -

Developing the Sector Skills Plan (SSP) for 2011-2016 for 

PSETA
100% 100% 1

Developing the SMS competency battery - - -

Drafting of a Quality Council for Trades and Occupations 

(QCTO) alignment strategy document
100% 100% 1

Drafting of concept business strategy for the anti-

corruption framework
100% 20% -

Drafting of the ICT Security Governance Framework 25.83% 25.83% 1

Editing services on the Employment Equity Guideline - - -

Editing proof-reading the 2009 Annual Public Service 

Gender Indaba Report
- - -

Evaluating and consulting learning programmes 100% 100% 1
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PROJECT TITLE

% OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGEMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF 

WORKERS FROM 

HDI’S THAT WORKED 

ON THE PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Evaluating assessors for accreditation for learner 

programs
- - -

Evaluating learning material for the skills development 

program
100% 100% 2

Evaluating learning programmes - - -

Evaluating learning programs 100% 100% -

Evaluating the Quality Management System courses 100% 100% -

External moderation on courses for the Diplomatic 

Academy
- - -

Facilitating the Business Plan Workshop for PSETA 100% 100% 1

French and Portuguese translations for the All African 

Public Sector Innovation Awards conference
100% 100% 1

Geographic Information System project - - -

HR Connect Project 100% 100% 2

Internal auditing services for DPSA - - -

Interpretation services for the APRM road show 100% 100% 1

Interpreting documents from English to Portuguese for 

the All Africa Public Sector Innovation Awards ceremony
100% 100% 1

Interpreting French anti-corruption documents into 

English
100% 100% 1

Interpreting services for a public function in the 

Democratic Republic of the Congo
100% 100% 1

Interpreting services for a SADC meeting 100% 100% 1

Interpreting services for an APRM road show 100% 100% 1

Interpreting services rendered for the consultative 

workshop
50% 50% 1

Occupational Health & Safety Services for the Urban 

Thusong centre in the Mopanya Mall
100 100 1

Outsourcing CFO function for PSETA 100% 100% 1

Project implementation of a MIS system for PSETA - - -

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
100% 100% 1

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
100% 100% 1

Project Manager for the Government Chief Information 

Officer
100% 100% 1

Providing strategic support to the Minister 100% 100% 1
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PROJECT TITLE

% OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGEMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF 

WORKERS FROM 

HDI’S THAT WORKED 

ON THE PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Qualification verification services - - -

Quality Assurance Activities for PSETA - - -

Quality Assurance Activities for PSETA 100% 100% -

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs - - -

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs - - -

Quality assurance of learning evaluation programs - -

Refining the IT Strategy Plan for the Public Sector 

Information and Communication Technology 

Management

30% 30% -

Researching and writing a paper on the “Unblocking 

Service Delivery”
100% 100% 1

Sign language services during an APRM road show 100% 100% 1

Sign language services during an APRM road show 100% 100% 1

Sign language services during an APRM road show 100% 100% 1

SPS : Change Readiness assessment 53% 53% -

Transcribing of documents for a departmental strategic 

session
- - -

Transcribing services for a departmental strategic session - - -

Transcribing services for a Government and 

Administration Cluster meeting
100% 100% 1

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
- - -

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
- - -

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
- - -

Transcribing the Governance and Administration cluster 

meeting
- - -

Translating APRM’s National Program of Action into 

French
100% 100% 1

Translating services between French and English in the 

Democratic Republic of Congo
100% 100% 1

Translating services for the AAPAM conference - - -

Translating services from English to French and 

Portuguese for a SADC workshop
- - -

Translating the “Social Cluster Booklet” into official 

languages
- - -
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PROJECT TITLE

% OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGEMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF 

WORKERS FROM 

HDI’S THAT WORKED 

ON THE PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Translating the APRM Annual Report into French 50% 50% 1

Translating the booklet “ Know Your Service Rights” into 

official languages
100% 100% 1

Translating editing and proofreading documents 

from English to Arabic for the All Africa Public Sector 

Innovation Awards

50% 50% 1

Translating editing and proof-reading Sepedi documents 

for the All African Public Sector Innovation Awards 

conference

100% 100% 1

Translation of a French anti-corruption document into 

English
- - -

Verifying services of competency achievements of 

learners in the Western Cape
- - -

Wage Settlement Survey - - -

14.3 Report on consultants using donor funds for the period April 2010 to March 2011

PROJECT TITLE

TOTAL NUMBER OF 

CONSULTANTS ON 

THE PROJECT DURATION OF DAYS

CONTRACT VALUE 

IN RAND

CONSULTANTS

Refining and repackaging the anti-corruption training 

materials
1 40 300 000

14.4 Report on consultants using donor funds for the period April 2010 to March 2011

PROJECT TITLE

%OWED BY HDI 

GROUPS

% MANAGMENT BY 

HDI GROUPS

NUMBER OF WORKERS 

FROM HDI’S THAT 

WORKED ON THE 

PROJECT

CONSULTANTS

Refining and repackaging the anti-corruption training materials 1 40 300 000
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